Date
Time

P
ES

KNS Y
County Council 33@3;%“

Highways Committee

/"DurhamEZ]

Thursday 31 January 2013
10.45 am

Venue Hamsterley and Low Westwood Community Association,

Derwent Cote, Hamsterley Colliery, NE17 7PB

Business
Part A

Apologies for Absence

2.  Substitute Members

3.  Declarations of interest, if any

4. Proposed Definitive Map Modification Order to add a footpath to the
Definitive Map and Statement - Hamsterley Mill, B6310 to High
Hamsterley Road - Joint Report of Corporate Director, Regeneration
and Economic Development and Head of Legal and Democratic
Services (Pages 1-72)

5.  Such other business, as in the opinion of the Chairman of the meeting,
is of sufficient urgency to warrant consideration

Colette Longbottom
Head of Legal and Democratic Services

County Hall

Durham

23 January 2013

To:  The Members of the Highways Committee

Councillor G Bleasdale (Chair)
Councillor J Robinson (Vice-Chair)

Councillors B Arthur, A Bainbridge, D Burn, N Foster, D Hancock,
S Hugill, D Marshall, J Maslin, A Naylor, J Shiell, P Stradling,

T Taylor, L Thomson, R Todd, E Tomlinson, J Turnbull, C Woods,
A Wright and R Young

Contact: Michael Turnbull Tel: 03000 269 714




This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

Special Highways Committee

31 January 2013

Proposed Definitive Map Modification
Order to add a footpath to the Definitive
Map and Statement

Hamsterley Mill, B6310 to High
Hamsterley Road

Joint Report of lan Thompson, Corporate Director, Regeneration
and Economic Development and Colette Longbottom, Head of Legal
and Democratic Services

1.0 Purpose of the Report

1.1 To consider a proposal to modify the Definitive Map and Statement of Public
Rights of Way.

2.0 Background

2.1 In February 2012 the Rights of Way team was alerted by local residents about
the obstruction of this path by tree cuttings, a wooden fence and stacked up
paving slabs which had been removed from the surface of the path by the
owner of the land.

2.2 The path is 29 metres long and follows in a north — south direction from the
stub of the cul de sac of High Hamsterley Road between nos 17 and 20 to join
the B6310. The path crosses a grassed area between these 2 properties
before reaching 9 steps with a handrail leading up to the B6310. Prior to
February 2012 where the path crossed the grassed area it was constructed
with a double line of paving slabs, being 1.2 metres wide. The location is
shown on the plan at Document A.

2.3 The proposal to record the path as a public footpath has been supported by
evidence of usage. 106 people have completed user evidence questionnaires
detailing their use of the path over a period of time. The oldest recollection
dating to the early 1950’s. Formal Statements have been taken from 11 of
these path users. These statements and a summary of the forms are
attached at Document B.

2.4  The path crosses land which is part of 17 High Hamsterley Road and has
been in its current ownership since 1992. The owner has been consulted and
indicates that she objects to the registration of the path as public footpath.
Her submissions are shown in Document C.

Page 1



2.5

3.0

3.1

3.2

3.3

4.0
41

4.2

Page 2

In addition to the owner, consultations have been carried out with Local
Members, the Ramblers Association and the utilities. Responses have been
received from the utilities who do not object to the proposals. No other
responses have been received to the consultation

Legal Framework

The briefing note attached at Document D sets out the legal framework and
considerations for modifications to the Definitive Map & Statement. The
County Council, as Surveying Authority, has to make a decision in
accordance with the law and in particular the provisions of the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981. .

Under the provisions of Section 53 of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981,
the County Council as Surveying Authority has a duty to keep the Definitive
Map and Statement under review and is required to make a Modification
Order (Section 53 (3) (c) (i)) on the discovery by the authority of evidence
which (when considered with all other relevant evidence available to them)
shows a right of way subsists or is reasonably alleged to subsist. The
evidence ‘discovered’ by the County Council in this case is the evidence of
use of the path submitted by the public.

The Highways Act 1980, Section 31, states that, in the absence of contrary
intention, a way may be ‘deemed to have been dedicated as a highway’,
where ‘it has been actually enjoyed by the public as of right and without
interruption for a full period of 20 years’, that period to be calculated
retrospectively from the date when the right of public use was brought into
question. In this case the obstruction of the path in February 2012 is
considered an interruption to usage sufficient to bring the right of public use
into question. The owner also states that the path was obstructed in 1992.
The 20 year period must be calculated retrospectively from one of these
dates. This is discussed further in the report.

Evidence of use

In total, 106 people have provided evidence of pedestrian use of the route
spanning the period from the early 1950’s to present. Of these users 49
people state they have used the path for the 20 years from 1992 — 2012 and
12 people from 1972 — 1992. Of the total users 89 people are from the main
Hamsterley Mill estate, 14 from Parklands and 3 who live elsewhere locally.
Some users have mentioned that they have cycled the route but it is
considered that the presence of the steps would not make it possible for the
whole route to be cycled so it would not be possible to acquire rights for
cyclists.

The evidence of usage consistently describes that the footpath was open and
available right up until February 2012. None of the users recall any
obstructions up until then nor that anyone had been given permission or been
challenged in any way.



4.3

4.4

5.0

5.1

5.2

6.0

6.1

6.2

Usage of the route can be divided into those using it for leisure to gain access
to walks along the Derwent \Walk and Hamsterley Hall area and those using it
for the specific purpose of reaching the bus stops and the post box on the
A694. The latter utility usage only includes those on the Parklands estate.

The users who were interviewed by Officers and provided Statements were
unclear as to when the paving slabs or handrail were placed in the path.
The most elderly witness (no. 44) who has lived on the estate since the late
1940’s believes that the steps were constructed on instruction from Lord Gort
(a previous landowner) around 1960.

Documentary Evidence

Little can be gleaned from maps and documents predating the building of the
Hamsterley Mill estate, as prior to the building of the estate (bulk built in
1960’s) the land was fields and woodlands. The parcel of land over which the
path passes resulted from the laying out of the estate. The parcel of land is
consistently shown on modern maps, including that shown at Document A, as
a rectangular strip, however, nothing can be deduced from these as to the
status of the path.

The Hamsterley Mill Residents Association appear to have been actively
interested in local footpaths and have provided copies of AGM minutes
relating to maintenance they have carried out on the footpath. In the minutes
from their April 1994 AGM it is reported that they had replaced the handrail on
the path over the previous year and at the April 1990 AGM that an all weather
footpath had been laid. It is likely that this refers to the paving slabs. The
1990 works followed an item in the 1988 minutes where it was noted that their
request to Derwentside District Council for an all weather path had been
turned down. ‘The reason given is that this work would conflict with the
Council’s present policy which is to use all the available resources on the
repair of existing paths and roads’. These minutes are shown in Document
E.

Objections/Rebuttal Evidence

The owner has provided information about the footpath and the land it crosses
and considers that the path cannot have acquired public footpath rights. Her
submissions include the following and are found in Document C

She confirms that she bought the land in March 1992 and there was no
physical footpath denoted on any plans when she bought it. She says that at
that time the land was very wild and overgrown and that there was no
concrete path or handrail. The steps were obscured by overgrown bushes.
She states that in 1992 she cleared the land and erected fencing along her
boundary. However, at that time she was informed by an enforcement officer
from the Council that she could not have her fence in this position because of
the footpath. She therefore moved it back. This alteration of the fence line is
confirmed by the builder from that time. The original fence was in place for 3-
4 days. She also states that between 1998 and 2000 the Hamsterley Mill
Residents Association arranged for the laying of the concrete slabs, the
widening/opening of the steps and installation of a handrail, without

Page 3



6.3

Page 4

consideration of her as owner. She includes a recent letter from the previous
owner of her property stating that when she lived there (pre 1992) there was
not a concrete path in place.

Response
The ownership of the land is a matter of public record and is not therefore in

dispute. The owner indicates that in 1992 there were steps leading from the
B6310 onto the land although it is suggested that the land was very
overgrown. The evidence of obstruction of the footpath in 1992 appears to
conflict with the user evidence as none of the users can recall any such
obstruction at that time.. Although the owner asserts that the obstruction
existed for 3-4 days, it is surprising that, having regard to the regularity of the
usage put forward, no one has any direct recollections of the route being
obstructed or closed at that time. In any case the owner indicates that she
moved her fence so that it was along her boundary rather than specifically for
the purpose of blocking the footpath which would be necessary to be
considered an interruption to usage. There is also a conflict of evidence as to
the laying of the concrete slabs as the owner states these were laid between
1998 and 2000 together with the installation of a handrail. The former owner
of 17 High Hamsterley Road (until 1992) also recalls that there was not a
concrete path while she was resident and also comments that the grassed
area had always been kept well mown by her husband. However, the minutes
of the Residents Association AGM of April 1994 indicate that the slabs were
laid in the previous year, 1993/4, and the April 1990 minutes that a handrail
was replaced 1989/90. In terms of whether a public right of way has been
established the exact timings of the laying of concrete slabs and replacement
of the handrail are not crucial but do seem to reflect that there was demand
for such facilities due to usage of the path and did not lead to any objection by
the owner until recently. These issues can only be resolved at a Public
Inquiry where the competing evidence will be tested.

A copy of an ‘Abstract of Title’ for 17 High Hamsterley Road from 1959

is provided that reads’...conveyed unto the Purchasers....... all that piece of
land............ AND TOGETHER with right of way for the Purchasers.....on foot
and with or without horses carts and other carriages including mechanically
propelled vehicles over and along the road or roads leading from the said
piece of land to the public highway from Newcastle upon Tyne to Shotley
Bridge for access to and egress from the said piece of land from and to the
said public highway

Response
The title document relates to the sale of the property in 1959. If it was a

common clause for all the properties in Hamsterley Mill it could have
functioned as an easement Although the roads on the estate were adopted
by the County Council as publicly maintainable highways in 1987, that would
not extinguish the private easement which would effectively co-exist from that
time onwards with the public highway rights. However, the easement did not
encompass a right to use all the roads on the estate, just those necessary to
reach the A694 and crucially, it only relates to a right of way to gain access
from the property to the A694 (Newcastle Shotley Bridge road) so could never
have related to the footpath as this was never a ‘road’ but a ‘grass verge’.



6.4

6.5

7.0

7.1

From the Abstract of Title a restrictive covenant was imposed on the sale of
plots to the effect that the purchasers 'would not use the grass verge in front
of the site for any other purpose than as a grass verge and will not do or
permit or suffer anything to be done to prevent or interfere with the
maintenance as such by them’.

Response
The restrictive covenant makes specific reference to the use made by the

purchaser of the grass verge. The purchaser’s own use of the verge would
not affect how any other persons may use the verge nor prevent the
acquisition of public rights. The covenant appears to be concerned with
ensuring that the verges remain as grassed areas.

The main road into Hamsterley Mill Estate had a Private Road sign erected on
it for the period 1949 -1987 when the estate roads were adopted. Prior to
1987 the footpath would therefore not have run from a highway to another
highway. Use during the period 1972 — 92 was not by the public at large and
the 12 people who had used the path for this full period were from an
exclusive group ie the residents. In the period post 1987 the Hamsterley Mill
Residents Association had had requests declined by Derwentside District
Council to provide the path as an all weather surface (1988 AGM mins) and to
replace the handrail (1994 AGM mins).

Response
There is no direct evidence provided that a Private Road sign existed and in

any case the sign could certainly not be interpreted to relate to the footpath as
it is not a road. It is also doubtful that such a sign would have been sufficient
to demonstrate a lack of an intention to dedicate by the landowner for all
classes of public right because of its ambiguity: the words could merely be
interpreted as showing an intention to deny the existence of a carriageway.
However, its existence would appear to be consistent with the right of way
referred to in the title of 17 High Hamsterley Road. It is not accepted that the
lack of adoption of High Hamsterley Road prior to 1987 is in itself sufficient to
indicate that the footpath prior to this date could not have acquired public
rights because of a lack of ‘public’ termination points. The B6310 has been a
public highway for longer than the Hamsterley Mill estate has existed and use
of the estate roads, over and beyond any rights to reach the A694, even by
residents would have established public rights. Evidence of Derwentside
District Council declining to carry out footpath works is not sufficient to be
interpreted that footpath rights do not exist. It is likely to represent a
pragmatic response to a request for works that the Council had no statutory
responsibility for as the former Derwentside District Council was not the
Highway Authority.

Recommendations and Reasons

It is Officers’ view that there is sufficient evidence that a public right of way on
foot is reasonably alleged to subsist on the basis of acquisition by statutory
deemed dedication under Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 whether the
date of interruption is taken as 2012 when tree branches and other items were
placed across the path or in 1992 when the owner states that she placed
fencing across it.

Page 5



7.2

7.3

7.4

Page 6

This is because the most contemporary 20 year period (1992-2012) includes
evidence of continuous use by 52 people and the earlier period (1972-1992)
by 11 people.

It is accepted that the footpath has steps and a handrail and was paved with
concrete slabs, the latter having been removed in February 2012. Although
there is a conflict in evidence as to the dates of repairs or new works, the
essential issue is whether the claimed way was used by members of the
public as of right over the relevant 20 year period rather than the existence or
otherwise of the paving slabs and handrail at any given time. However, their
existence does tend to suggest that the path was used. There does not
however appear to be a dispute that the steps were constructed, possibly in
the 1960’s.

There is a conflict of evidence as to the 1992 fencing works. If it is accepted
that the path was blocked for a few days, it appears that the motive for the
proposed fencing was to realign the property’s boundary rather than to
prevent use of the footpath. Indeed at the time of moving into the property in
1992 the owner indicates that the steps were obscured by overgrown bushes
and the land wild and unkempt. For the purposes of Section 31 of the
Highways Act 1980 it is considered that the 1992 actions stated by the owner
are not sufficiently clear to amount to either an interruption or a lack of
intention to dedicate the path. It is accepted that the actions of the landowner
in February 2012 in blocking the path would be sufficient to demonstrate a
lack of intention to dedicate. However, if it is the case that the fencing works
were undertaken in 1992 and that the intention of the landowner in doing so
was to obstruct or prevent public access, then there would be a break in the
continuity of the user evidence such that as of February 2012 when the
footpath was obstructed by the landowner, a full 20 years had not elapsed.

This issue is something which is only likely to become clear in the context of a
Public Inquiry (assuming that the owner objects to any Order which may be
made by the Council, thereby necessitating the holding of a Public Inquiry).
However, it is not necessary for Members to reach a firm conclusion one way
or the other on the issues of whether the path was in fact blocked in 1992 or
what was the intention of the owner in doing so at this stage because firstly, it
is sufficient if Members are satisfied that the path is no more than reasonably
alleged to exist as a public right of way (which is a lower threshold test to be
met than whether there is sufficient evidence to establish that the right of way
does exist) and secondly, there is ample evidence of user as of right over the
20 year period immediately preceding 1992 i.e. 1972 — 1992. Therefore, even
if it is considered that there was an interruption adequate for Section 31 of the
Highways Act 1980 in 1992, the Modification Order should still be made.

It is considered that there is insufficient evidence contained in the Abstract of
Title to support the assertion that the Hamsterley Mill Estate was entirely a
private estate and use of all the roads by all residents was by virtue of a right
of way granted by Lord Gort, until the roads were adopted in 1987. However,
even if that were the case, the private rights of way (easements) granted did
not relate to the claimed footpath. Nor is it accepted that a public right of way
could not be acquired, over land connected at one end to one of these roads.



7.4 In conclusion, on the balance of probabilities, taking into account the above
matters, it is considered that sufficient evidence exists for a presumption of
dedication under the provisions of Section 31 of the highways Act 1980 and at

common law.

It can be reasonably alleged that a public footpath subsists

either on the basis of 20 years usage as of right for the period between 1972 -
1992 or between 1992 - 2012. Accordingly the requirements of Section 53 (3)
(c) (i) of the Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 have been fulfilled.

7.5 It is therefore recommended that a Modification Order be made under the
Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 to add a public footpath along the route
shown in Document A to the Definitive Map and Statement

Attached Documents

Document A

Plan showing location of the footpath

Document B

Summary of user evidence forms and more detailed
statements from 11 people

Document C

Submissions made by owner

Document D

Briefing Note for Committee on Definitive Map Modification
Orders

Document E

Minutes of Hamsterley Mill Residents Association Minutes
from 1988, 1990 and 1994

Contact:

Audrey Christie Tel: 03000 265332
Neil Carter Tel: 03000 269722

Page 7



Appendix 1: Implications

Finance — Not applicable to the decision

Staffing — Not applicable to the decision

Risk — Not applicable to the decision

Equality and Diversity / Public Sector Equality Duty — Not applicable to the
decision

Accommodation — Not applicable to the decision

Crime and Disorder — Not applicable to the decision

Human Rights — The County Council, as Surveying Authority, has to make a
decision in accordance with the law and in particular the provisions of the Wildlife
and Countryside Act 1981. Given these legal criteria, a decision must reflect this
legislation despite any other rights of individuals.

Consultation — As detailed in paragraph 2.5 of the report

Procurement — Not applicable to the decision

Disability Issues — Not applicable to the decision

Legal Implications — A Modification Order is the legal process by which changes
are made to the Definitive Map and Statement. If the Modification Order is made
and the landowner objects, there will be a need for the Secretary of State to hold a
Public Inquiry at which all parties will have an opportunity to be heard and produce
evidence, in order to inform the decision whether or not to confirm the Order.

Page 8



Document
showing
path and its
location

fenig il

Remolpug = =|=—|=|

yedjood = — — —

:sjesodoud ayj Agq paloaye jou
AVM 4O S1HDIY J11and

¢10¢ 19903100 8| -8keQ

00022 :| :9le0S

Juswalels pue
dey aAiuYaQ 8y} 03 pappe
aq 0} yiedioo} pasodoid

peoy

Asps)sweH ybiH o1 0lLeog
N AssisweH

J3pIO UoREOHIPON

depy aAnuyeqg pesodold

= imﬂ_ U

woor 1
Nle usmiag
Py L SR
) M,/ \%v =l
O
e el
(r=ilon]
6 3 o 3 ﬁ@ﬁg e
/\\\\\Aﬂv _H___U
2 @, g/
o d
bmmn A
gd i d
py, | ©
el
g

aoys sng

xog 1sod

wJied yeQ amiag

ONg LHA WvHINa

TI¥H ALNNOD

TIONNOD ALNNOD WYHINA
1NINJOTIAIA DINONODT
ANV NOILYHINIOFY
¥OLOFNIA FLVHOJHOO
NOSJWNOHL NvI

BN\ (1Duno) Ajunod

,_,,._u_mm 1531g

waeqY
paojzInL]
L2

_u._o‘ﬁ.um_./_

> ,am&

e, xwtmum eH
Asjaswep 2
ugH

\ waeyd
91031UIMY

dojg sng




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Summary of users 1992 - 2012 and 1972 - 1992

Document B
Form [No. users Form [No. users
Name completing Name completing
no. 1992-2012 §1972-1992 fform >1 no. 1992-2012 §1972-1992 fform >1
1 Aird 1&S 51 Lowes R
2 Armstrong J 52 McCormack JE
3 Bailey S 53 McCormack AO
4 Berry B 54 McDermott MM
5 Berry GA 55 McDermott JR
6 Bertenshaw/Cook A/G x2 56 McKay F _
7 Blewitt S 57 McNestry A
8 Booth C 58 Meadowcroft J
9 Booth P 59 Mongan K
10 Bower M 60 Mongan M
11 [Bowring P 61 |Moore K I
12 Britton H&D X 2 62 Morris AJ
13 Brown S 63 Morris R
14 Buxton V 64 Murray B
15 Bygrave V 65 Newman R
16 |Carter M e 66 |Nichols R&F X 2
17 Chapman P 67 Nicholson R
18 Connolly W 68 Oakley |
19 Cooper R 69 Oxley A
20 Cowan J 70 Oxley K
21 Cowan C 71 Pensom AJ
22 [Davies BJ I 72 |Phillips SM
23 Davis G&J 73 Phillips S
24 Edmonds DL 74 Raine A
25 Edwards SE 75 Rayner D
26 Emmett J 76 Reay TE
27 Fairless J 77 Reece IH
28 Fairless Nicholson J 78 Saunderson P
29 Fairless Nicholson N 79 Spratt S
30 Frost C 80 Spry WH
31 GillM 81 Tan K
32 Graham LB 82 Taylor EE
33 Graham A 83 |TaylorJ
34 Hall/Adnett D/B 84 |TaylorR
35 Harbinson C 85 Taylor AM
36 Harbinson AE 86 Temple A
37 Harbinson MJ 87 Turner R
38 Harlow GR 88 Turner M
39 Harrison B 89 Turner D&R X2
40 Hunt C 90 Vasey MF
41 Hutchinson M 91 Watts D
42 Hutchinson J 92 Webster S
43 Jack G 93 Webster P
44 Johnson AD 94 Weeks A
45 Lambert D 95 Weeks F
46 Lawson E&D 96 Worthy J
47 Lindsay AD 97 Wright C
48 Little JL 98  [WrightR
49 Longrigg J&N 99 Wright L
50 Lowery P

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Document B

Hamsterley Mill Estate/Parklands —
locations of those completing user evidence questionnaires

Questionnaire numbers

High Hamsterley Road

2,3,11,12, 25, 30, 49, 68, 84, 90, 91

High Mill Road

15, 18, 31, 39, 58, 75, 87, 88

Lintzford Road

1,16, 17, 23, 26, 27, 28, 29, 32, 33, 35, 36, 37,
42,48, 54, 55,67,72,73,76, 77

Lodge Close

7,8,9,10, 13, 34, 38, 45, 59, 60, 64, 79, 82, 83,
92, 93, 97, 98, 99

Long Close Road

4, 5,47, 62, 63, 85, 94, 95

Mill Farm Road

6, 20, 21, 51,61, 78

Parklands

19, 43, 44, 50, 52, 53, 56, 57, 65, 66, 81, 89

Tollgate Road

22, 24, 40, 46, 69, 70, 71, 74, 86, 96

Other addresses

14, 41, 80

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 14



A N N N N A N N N A snq jooyos| A AepeysweH| 00C 9 9 ¢10¢ |900¢ | dd cLoc/eolvi umoig( 'gf €l
wod} Jayybnep 010L€99 S
109]|00 0] =
- - N N N - N N N A| spuauy Bumsinf - spuepied oif Q0| Zl cl ¢l0cC |000C | dd Z10¢/co/SL uonlg H| z1
N AopieiswenH ® M
N N N N N N N N N A ainsie)  jusmusq pue| GJ A JAS ¢l0c |9461 | dd ¢10¢/co/0L Buumog d| L1
spuepied 0}
LWIAI Asuiiswiet]
N N N N N N N N N A ainsiaT demius| +00L | LS 67 (CL0cC (€961 (L1261 (9961 dd Z10¢/co/6l Jamogd N| oL
(Mmuaq/spueplied uayl
0}
LA Aopisiswe M4
N N A A N| V/N N N N A Buluuni| sjjepm jusmisg| 8 8 8 ¢L0c¢ [¥00C | dd 2102/eo/6l yjoog d|l 6
/Buniepn| o1 8s0[0 86po
N N N N N| V/N N N N A Bunjiem| e uemiea| 9 8 8 ¢L0¢ [¥00C | dd 2102/20/8l yjoog O 8
/BulpAp| oy 8so|p abpoT
N A N N N - A N N N| siemboa |swoH ojswoH| 00€ 8 8 ¢L0¢ [¥00C | dd 2102/20/s1 nmolg S| L
N N N N N - A N A| sBop Bunjiep awoH ol +0GL | L1 L ¢L0¢ [100C | dd 2102/20/s1 300D /[ OV 9
e Jusmieq meysusyag
A A N N N A A N A uonealday spoop| ¢L-0L| ¥€ 123 ¢l0¢ |8161 dd ¢10¢/co/6l Aueg| vol ¢
‘s994 /puepjied o}
VHINH 1091100 [N AojisiswenH
A A N N N A A N A uoneasoay(  spoopmiem| L 1% 1243 2l0c |8.61 dd 2102/20o/6l Aueg d, v
uamiaQg
0} peoy 9so0|)
A N N N A N N A Apwey| siemwsmisd| 0¥/0E [ 6 6 Z2l0c¢ [€00C | dd 2102/20/LL Aojeg S| €
Uim syjepn 0} sWoH
A N N N - N N N| uonesaidsipue| yemjusmisg| G9E L L ¢l0¢ |S00C | dd Z102/20/SL| bBuonswiy r e
Bunjem 6og 0] 8WOH
N A A N N A N A spusly spuepied| +009 | V1 14" Z10¢ |8661 dd 2102/20/91 piv| S%Il L
Bunisia ‘Buloho| yepn uemiaq
‘Bunyiem BoQq 0] dWOH
- M mj m m My o0 (0] Py S = <0 9] =
me.mquo mA_.v_ qu_vqlo_.w seous} | Z %vﬂua...m.. pY woi4 /oL m.o mw %w m % m % o m..u_wf %m % 3
o5l cls 2] @ |3 4138 Slsetreu| 2 o o] @ =] sol25122] 2 =1 o =1 @ 2 gagy 3 3 1=z
gl ol 2]l 5 | oS < Om..SealU B e el e o o o o S, @ =% o o) g 1o
me%mowmmnmm.% 3 mwm 3 < 3 MNAMM.. L o o o P n.M_u @..%J w L
=) % <} W 5 | Q ujisqo % S uoneunsaqg m Il @ /x\ m ® (5] @ [} % s o

19ayspealds aouspIAe - g JuaWwnooQ




A N N N N N N N N A Bujoko| Aepp yuamisg| 00C € € Z10¢ |6002C dd 210¢/c0/9l Jswwg I 9¢
‘Bop ay} Bupjem 0] 9WOH
‘ainseald
A A N N N - N N N A|Bop auy Buiiepm| siem uemiaa| +00€ | €1 /L |[Z10c¢ [S00¢ [S00c¢ (6661 [ dd ¢10¢/co/6l spiempg| 3IS| S¢
oy} 0] SWOoH
A N N N N N N N N A dojs snq 0L 04¢ 9 9 ¢10¢ 19002 dd 210¢/co/6l spuowpd|( 71d| ve
0}186 ‘spualy| cog/spuepied
USIA ‘Bupjjem Plem
Bop ‘Buiphp Jusamia 01
peoy a1ebjjol
- - N N N - - - - Bop Buniiepm| e uemieq| - 8 8 ¢l0¢ |00 dd 210¢/20/91 sineqd| Meo| €¢
0} 9)e)sg
N N N N N A A N N A Bunjiem qgem| - 1€ JAS ¢l0c |G.61 dd 210¢/20/91 salned| rd|ee
Bop pue ainsia uamiaq o}
peoy ayebjjol
N N N N N A N N A ainsia M| ¢S 2 2 ¢lLoc |1102 dd 210¢/20/8l uemop Of be
apIsjuamiag
0} BWOoH
N N N N N A A N A ainsief Mlep juemieq| ¢g l l ¢loc |110c dd 210¢/co/6l uemo) I 0¢
0] SWOH
N N N N N N N N A Bop djeisg ueN| 00G < | 2L Zl ¢10¢ 10002 dd 210¢/20/vl Jadood d| 61
Mlem ‘spuauy| o) spueped
SIA ‘snq
|o0yos yoyen
A N N N N A N N A uonealiosy dem| 09 g ] ¢10¢ 11,002 dd 210¢/co/6l Ajjouuod M| 8L
jusmiaq 0y
N Aspsiswen
N N N N A N N A dlem oreog o 0€ 14> ¢¢ |Cl0c |0661 (6461 |S961 dd 210¢/c0/sl uewdeyd d| LI
|euoljealoay| peoy piojzul
N N N N - N N A Buniiem Pnpeipl - - (0] 0¢ ¢l0¢ |2861 dd 210¢/co/6l lsue)d N[ 9l
0} dWOoH
A A N N A N N A[Buniiem ‘ainsien pesuod| 09 Zl Zl ¢10¢ |000¢ dd 210¢/c0o/9l anelbAg Nl Gb
‘buiddoys pue 19
Spue|Moy 0}
A Aepsiswen
N N N N - N N A Anwey| N AepeysweH| - 6l 61l ¢l0¢C |€661 dd 210¢/c0/LL uoxng A\R4’
Bumisia pue Bop|  ‘py plojzur
ynm Buniiepn| o3 Asjswopaiy
- T m|® m| m o) I &z <0 ol s
% Mm qA_u qA_v .mmm_w m%o“m& zZ mu....u...m Y woi4 /o] %.0 man %w m @ m @ o = mm » _©
=T S = ho] — o C = =} Q =} Q (2]} (0] <. c
a fl= c 3 |3 S| sebpe 9o 21° 3 S o|?® IR a a b 2 o3 < = S
o 2lzGlea]l & |zl = 1218 o gs, Bl=2]=8 - “lals| 3283 2 S0l Z
ezl=2|52| S |82]|2% 8 |° «ls 2 2 s EPIEEI R A A R A R 2 Si= I
Q nWM. 3 ? mnw.m.%c_ywno @ o|® & @ uoneunsaq 3D /w\wwm. o @ @ @ S @ 3 @ o
-~ o — o — = (2] »n m » - O (¢)

19ayspealds aouspIAe - g JuaWwnooQ




N~
—
N A N N N N N N N A asl0I9%d sem| 9SY | Ly Ly Z¢10c |9961 dd| S9A |¢102/c0/8L| uosulgieH ﬂ_mv JAS
pue uopjeasoay uamiaq 0} o
W Aspisiswen
N A N N N N N N N A uonealdal spuepied| 91¢ LZ ¥4 Z¢L0c (L1661 dd ¢10¢/c0/gL | uosuiqleH( I V| 9¢€
/9SI019%8 Mlem
/spusliy 99 uamiaq 0}
N Aeps)swen
N[ A N[ N[ N N N[ N N[ A espiexe|  spuepted| 00% | G€ | &€ z10z |26 | dd 2102/20/81| uosuigieH[  Of ¢
pue uoljealdsy 10 e\
uamiaq 0}
N AspieysweH
N N N N N A N N N A| sbBoq bunjiep| ed Anunod o €c €c 2l0c |6161 dd - Beupy/iieH| a/d| ve
/silep Aunod|  Juemusq 0y ss g
/spueplied|eooe/spueped| =
ul sasnoy JIsIA| 0} 8so|) 8b6poT m
<
- N N N N - N N N A Buniiem olegg oy +0SG LG LG ¢l0oc |1961 dd 210¢/20/81 weyelio V| €€
peoy a1ebjjol
A N N N N N N N A uonessdd|  oLe99 NOL| 00L LG LG [C10C |¥861 |¥86L [L961L dd| S9A |2102/20/60 weyeln| d| ¢
peoy aebjo] | - 0S
N N N N N A A N A uones.18y Alem| ¢S ¥4 ¥4 ¢L0c¢ |1661 dd c10¢/co/L)L no NI LE
0CO usmieQg
0} 8WOoH
N A N N N N N N A spusLy spuepied| 00€ | O¢C 0c ¢l0c¢ |¢661 dd 210¢/c0/9l 1sol4 Ol 0¢
Bumsia ‘Buiepm | Miem uemieq
0} 8WOoH
N N N N - N N A|spuaiyyisia o} Jo| spuepuied puel 00C [ Gl Sl ¢loc |L66L | dd ¢l0¢/c0/LL| uos|oydIN N| 62
Buipho ‘Bunjiepn| e wemiaqg ssoied
0} SWOH '
N N N N - N N A spualy|  spueped o] 00C | 0 0¢ ¢l0¢ |2661 dd ¢l0¢/c0/LL| Uuos|oydIN I 8¢
Bunisia ‘Bulohof| yepn uemiaq ssajle4
‘Buyiepn 0} SWOoH '
N A N N - N N N| oarhouoem| siemvemiagl 009 | GC 14 ZlL0cC [L861 dd 2102/eo/6l ssajlied (N XA
0} SWOoH
ge) m ml M s m ml ope of_, Py & z c <0 @) =1
s slzeloa| e [Ea|gd|=a| 2| 2l52] 2 | wewe |E5|5E|ES|D|2|D|2]|8(5|E2 2 |_
Qo2 clS =] @ |3 4138 Sfsebreu] & o o], @ = sol2cl® @ o 3 % 3 7] 2 wpmvm = S | =
gcl|ealz ol T |a@ 5 < i G 3 e =1 =>lsa| O o o =0 ) = lo
25lz=2l52| 8 |28]2 3 N ] E 2 cS|IS<[Eel = | & || & |c|2]53"% 3 D
CN o 3 .m SS S o [ussao o|°® W @ uoneunseq m o 33 .(mm\ = ) @ s |a| g c° ®

19ayspealds aouspIAe - g JuaWwnooQ




A N N N N N N N N A spuejed sem| 0GlL A% A% ZlL0c 0861 | dd 2102/20/60 S| 1r| 8y
0) sS900y| jJuemiaQ pue
spuepied 0}
N AspisiswenH
A N N N N A A N N A ModsuenfoLe9g o) swoH( 001 L L Zl0c¢ |S00C | dd 2102/20/vl Aespuri| av| v
211gnd pue
syled ssaooe 0]
N A N N N A N N N A|Bulpho ‘Buiiepm| siem usmiedf 0§ 8l 8l ¢l0c¢ |v66l | dd ¢l0¢/eo/st uosmeT| Av3| oY
R isniL
pUB|POOAA O}
peoy aiebjjol
N N N N N - N N N A uonesisy| yep juemiea| +001 | LZ Lz |ziroz |se61 [zL0z [se6L [e10Ad Z10¢/co/8L HaqueT] al sv
0} 8WOH
® dd
- A N N N A - - N A Bupjiem sem| 9 1% 0Z |c¢l0c (¢661l [c661 18261 | dd 2102/20/8¢ uosuyor| A v| vv
Buiddoys|/enua) uspies
‘lleqjooy /8Inoy
‘ainsia] ‘Yop|  sng oy swoH
N A N N N A N N N A Buiem peoy| 0GC | OV (017 ¢L0c |2l6l) dd| S9A oer Ol €V
‘snq Buiyoyeo a[}SeomaN
‘siepo| Bunsod| 0y spueped
N A N N N A N N N A [ooyds|  Js)sayoueT o} 19 19 600¢ [0S61 dd| S9A |21 0¢/¢0/vL | uosulyoinH r| ey
1eqoloyjebo]| pjeudouing oy
N AspieysweH
N N N N N N N N N A| 100uos pusny| Memuemiea|0G-0€ | LS 0¥ (Cl0c¢ (L6l (6961 [CS61 dd ¢10¢/c0/SL | uosulydinH | LY
0} SWOH
N N N N N A A N N A Bop| semivemieg( 00C | 9€ 9¢€ 21L0¢ [9.61 dd| S®A |210¢2/20/61 JunH of oy
Aw Buisioiex] 0] dWOH
N N N N N N N N N A dem emiag| 0§l 144 e ¢l0cC |886L | dd ZL0c/eo/LL uosieH d| 6€
0} SWOH
N N N N N N| 2¢Log N N A uonealoay slem| Ov A L€ ¢lLoc |61 | dd 2102/20/8l MOlIEH| Y9O| 8€
ge4 A uamiaq 0}
N AspieysweH
m m| m m ®) Py S <0 ol =
e Bslsls Bslazlenl =] &lz8] = wor |88|5ZI8S mlelm|le]|g]|2]| 2o ® 0
7ls Sl & - |3 2|8 5] Dlo = c o Ol o 3 o @ e o s < = S5
Qo2 clE =] o 3 o | ‘sebpay S lo o @ = - 9| - n @ o 3 [oX 3 (%] 2 o 3 =] =z
cocloa|z=C| 5 |5 8|S < 5 1518 o b o 2lF21=3] o o o |ls| 32238 D =0
gelzels 23 28123 g 1°¢l5=| @ SR EieY EX=1 IO IO IO ISl B O 3 2 °
15 W% M .m wmpmc;wno Wem @ uoneunsaq mw 33 /.mA..\M. T = @ & z o 2o ) o

19ayspealds aouspIAe - g JuaWwnooQ




N A N N N N N N N A Buioko| yem wemieg| 092 | Sl Gl ¢l0¢ |.661 dd 210¢/co/6l ueBuoly J| 6S
pue Burjep ay) sseooe —
0} SWOoH %J
N N N N N A N N N A Bupiiem poom| +00€ | S ] ¢l0c 1,002 | dd 210¢/20/L\ pjolomopes|y % 8¢
‘alnsig| ‘BulpAn (uing Juod e
uamiag
A N A A N - A N N A snq [ooyos uopAeig o3| 00€ 6 6 ¢l0cC |€00C | dd AnsaNoW V| LS
0} uaIpiyd| [N AepB)sweH
Buniiem
N N N N N - N N N A doys| spueped oy 00C | 9¢ 9¢ ZlL0c (9161 dd Aeyon 4| 9¢
snq o} [eM| ¥69V dois sng
N N N N N - N N N Al liemuemiag oleod| 0GC 8 8 ¢l0oc |¥00C | dd ¢10¢/c0/91 | NOWUS ON| Hr| SS
8y} SS900E 0] 0) 8)e)sg
A Aspe)sweH
N N N N N - N N N A| llem uemieq oleoga| 09 8 8 ¢L0c |¥00C | dd 2102/20/91 | HouwusadN| NIN| ¥S
8y} ss900E 0] 0) 8)e)sg
A Asps)sweH
A A N N N N N N N A Xoq peoy 69V T 9€ o¢ ¢l0¢ 19161 dd| S9A |2102/20/91 | XOBWIODION| O V| €S
1sod pue sdojs| uie|y 0y ajeis3 m
snq 0} 186 o spuepped| < %
=)
A A N N N N N N A ajeise peod v6ov| T 9¢ 9¢ ¢l0¢ 19461 dd 2¢10¢/20/91 |MOeWIODON| 3 | 2§
8y} uo sjuspisal| urep o) eye}sg m
pue xoq spuepped| <
1sod pue sdojs Muu..
snq 0} 196 o <
N N N N N N N N A USINIEOS|  spuepiied 0} fjoses | 0C 0¢ L10C (V661 dd 210¢/20/91 SOMOT] d| LS
A AspelsweH £
9N
N N N N - N N A xoq peoy v69v| 00G | Gl ¢l |[Zl0¢ |000¢ (6661 |9661 dd 210¢/c0/vl Kiemon d| 0§
1sod pue sng| 01 spuepjied
|O0YOS Yyo}eo 0}
uaip|iyo Bupie|
A N N N N N N A uonealosy jem| 00C | 9 14 ¢L0¢ 19961 dd| S®A |21 0¢/20/01 B61ubuoT N| 6%
Juamiag pue ®r
spuepjied 0}
A Aspe)sweH
.m_._._ _._._m._d_._._ ml o 91.uu mNﬂ <0 o =
wam.mdm 3 |2 5]a 3| sova | = mwm Y woiq/or | & ° %.anmw T2l 712133 MM & _
pomnnl.swlawm.wwmumsmesse S - 9 |2 S% o 3 o 5 1) 3 wpnA 5 5 | =
Scloal2 S| 5 |7 8|S< g |5 ,18 3 e 2172|538 o o o la|] 228 D = 15
25lz=2|52| 8 |28]2 3 g |° 2|3 = 2 <SSzl = | & || & |c|2]5§3"% 3 )
a nm.% M .m wmpm:_ywno wgm @ uoneunsaq mw 33 /.mA..\M. T = @ = z o 2o )

19ayspealds aouspIAe - g JuaWwnooQ




N A A A N A A N N N spualy spuepped| +00€ | ¢l cl ¢l0c¢ 1000 | dd 210¢/co/6l I e) M| 0L
Bunisia ‘Buljoko 10 Y| A
‘Bunyiem BoQq Juamiaq o}
peoy a1ebjjo]
N A A A N A A N N N uones.108y dem| C¢Lle | CL cl ¢l0cC |000C | dd ¢10¢/co/6l AoxQ V| 69
uamiaq 0}
peoy a1ebjjo]
N A A A - A N N N A uonealdal ajeis3 jleH| - (374 Ly ¢Loc |LL61 dd| S9A |¢1L02/c0/vl AopeQ Il 89
pue Bupjjep AspioisweH
e s
miag/spuepiied
0} 8WoH
N A N N N - N N N A Buioko] siem uemied| o0y | SG<C 14 ¢Loc |1861 | dd ¢10¢/c0/¢L | UOSI|OYdIN d| 29
pue Bupjjem 0} 8WoH| / noe
- ainsio
A N N N N N N N N A Snq yojeo o - spuepied 03] 00C | ¢V Z¥ |2l0¢ [800¢ [800¢ |0.L61 dd| S9A |210Z/c0/cl S|OYJSINpUE H| 99
peoy piojzjui
A A N N N A N N A dojs seysgy| - - - - - dd 210¢/co/vl ueBlMaN d| 99
snqoy1ab o] AspioisweH
0} spuepied
A NMEer A N N N N N A uones.108y| yep juemieg| 0€ 14 14 ZlL0c [L861 dd 2102/20/60 Aeunp d| 9
0) 9)e)sg
N A A A N N N N A Bupiem oleod| 0ZC | 6¢€ 8¢ |CL0C (861 (€861 |CL61 dd| S9A |2102/¢0/0¢ SO df €9
Bop ‘Buniiepm| “em jusmieg
‘spuepied
0} 9)e)s3
N Aspisiswen
A N N N N| 2Log N A uonealosy sem| 9GL [ 6€ 8¢ (Cl0c¢ V86l €861 (.61 dd c¢10c/eo/LL SUION| V]| 29
qe4 Jusmis( pue
Ll spuepjied 0}
A Aepeiswen
uo A
A A N N - N N A|Bulpho ‘Buniiep| siem uemied( 8/9 L€ A ¢l0c |S46L | 44 ¢l0¢/eo/st SI00N M| 19
0} SWOH
A A N N A N N A spualy aes3z| 00 | Gl Gl 2lLoc [L661 | dd 210¢/co/el ueBuo N 09
Bunisia ‘Buloho|  spueped Jo
‘Bunjiem Boa| Mepn wwamiaqg
0} 8WoH
- T m O m| _, Ml e ol & & z <0 ol =
o 125513 [2 533|500 | = ol 2 T wol4 /oL m.o cEISs| ol 2|0 2|al3] e 2 =R
OuuBJdJJwJU.W. o 69.&.. c ol® " |z @ a Q a Q a T =< = SN
2ol cls =] @ |2 4|38 Sfstreu]| S |2 2o 3 iR P = -+ 2| 320 =} ol Z
251281555 (22|23 s [Cel5 @ s EP B A A A A A R s | sg°
[¢) o =" = 3 — — Q — Q @ Q - —®
o nmm. m. .m. mnmm.m:_ywno » wgm @ uoneunsaqg m% Iw\w .(wAU\M. 5] T [¢) @ m W We o o

19ayspealds aouspIAe - g JuaWwnooQ




N N N N N N N N A SpUBLY SIA spuany ysin| 0GZ € € ¢l0c 1600 | dd 210¢/20/vl uel N| 18
‘looyos 0} snq| ‘xoq isod ‘doys %J
‘siapo| bunsod| snq o} swoH Da.u
N A N N N A N N N A uonesiosy siomeN| vL-ClL| 8€ 8¢ ¢L0c (V161 dd AN AVAN Aids| HM| 08
Yyedjoo4
dlignd pue
e JusmisQ
0) 9)e)sg
N AepsisweH
A A A A N A N N N A sng| doyg sngpiiem| +00L | €1 €l Z10¢ |6661 dd 2102/20/s1 peisds S| 64
e WwoJj uinjal 1o uamiaQg
yojeo ‘bop ayy 0] dWOH
sem ‘Buniem
- - N N N A N N N - Buijoho epishyunoo 00C | 8¢ yx4 Z¢l0c [L10cC (V861 dd Z10¢/c0/S| [uosiapuneg d| 84
pue asioiaxa BuiAjpno
‘Bunjiep 0] 9WOoH
A N N N N A N N A Bunjiem Bop[ siem uemiea( 00C | 8¢ 8¢ ZlL0c |¥861 dd 210¢/co/vl 9233y HI| 2L
pue 8s|oJoxe 0} SWOoH
‘alnses|d
N N N N N N N N N 8SIISX3| yep Juemisg| - - - - - dd 2102/20/s1 Aeay| 31|9L
0} 8WOoH
1 N[Nl ON[ON[ Al A N[ Al susinBuddoys nem| 002 | 2L | 2) zioz |066) | d zloz/eo/9L|  Jeukey| asL
‘leuonealoay uamiaq 0}
peoy [IIIN YbIH
N N N N N A N N A asioaloxe fMlem| +0G¢C | 8¢ €¢ |[¢10c¢ L00¢ [L00¢ |¥861 dd Z10¢/co/8L suley V| .
pue syjem 6og uamiaq 0}
peoy a1ebjjo]
A N N N N N N A Bupjiem swoH o} Cl 6l 6l ¢l0¢ (€661 dd ¢10c/co/6l sdijiiud S| €.
|euoljealoal pue| Mep Juamiaqg
Bunjem 6og
A N N N - N N Al [euoiEsIORy spoopm®| 80 | 0C 0c Z210¢ [2661 dd 2102/20/vl sdijiiud| N S| 22
e Jusmieq
0} SWOH
N N A N - N N A 8Insien spuepped| - LL0C |9861 dd 210¢/eo/ec wosusd| rv| kL
e JuamiaQ
0} SWOoH
s T m| ™ m| m o) I &z <0 ol =
o Mm = B Mmmﬂ_w m%o“m& z oz 2 T woid /ol m.o man S 9 m @ m @ o = 2 %
Tls Sl & - |3 2|8 5] g Dlo = c o ° = 3 o 3 o @ e T = < = 5
2olzcls sl 2 |23 a]streu] & |2 920 @ S RN P L o~ -+ o =+ @ 2 320 > 2 |z
gsleel22) 5 |aclss o |15, 2 IS e ==l © o w) ol2la| 2% o ) 5 lo
Semmopwmnmm.% % %WM % < 3 JPAWPH.. g o 8 o c = To "~ 3 =
o =y % m. W 53| m u1sqo w o W uoleunseq m % /mw n HA\ M. o o ] O % m o @ 10}

19ayspealds aouspIAe - g JuaWwnooQ




A N N N N A A A N A uonestosy yredioo4| 0§ 1% Ge cL0c (L1610 dd 210¢/co/8L J91SqQ3aM d| €6
e JusmisQ
0} 8s0|) 8bpo]
A N N N N A A A N A uonesIosy| yep uamiea| C1L 1% Ge ¢L0c (L1161 dd ¢10¢/co/8L I9ISOdM S| T6
0} SWOoH
A N A A N| V/Nmowun N N A Bunilep| 0L£99 0} peod| 9 € € 210¢ |600C | dd 2102/2o/6l SHEeM al Le
|euonealoay KelioysweH
ubiH
N - N N N - N N N A| spuauy BunisiA spuepied| € 9€ 9€ ¢l0oc |9461 | 44 ¢loc/eo/el Aesep| 4dIN| 06
0} peoy
AojoysweH
ubIH
A A N N N A N N N A syjlem ‘xoq xoq| +00C | ¥€ 123 2lL0¢ |8.61 dd| S9A |210¢/20/vl Jauin] | ged| 68
1sod ‘spuaiy|isod pue sjejsg
ysiA ‘dojs INH 69V
snqo}jebol| o) spuepued
N N A A N N A N N A siem| sep usmiad| 02 13 1% ZlL0c [LL61 dd 2102/20/8l Jauing N| 88
‘Spuslj @8s 0] 10 spuepjied
0) 9)e)sg
N Asj1eysweH
N N N N N N N| ON N A uonesI8d | yem uemiag| 0L 1 1 ¢L0cC [LL61 dd 2102/20/60 Jauin d| 18
0} SWOoH
- N N N N N N N N A Buniiem oleogoyf - - - - dd 2102/20/9l a|dwa | V| 98
peoy a1ebjjo]
A N N N N A A N N A snq yojea|spoom o} swoH| 017/0E | L L ¢l0c |S00C | dd c¢10c/colvl Jojkel| Wv|s8
0} ‘aunsia]
A A N N N A N N N A 8siIex3 peoy leH| O} 9 9¢ Z210¢ (9861 dd 2102/20/s1 Jojke d| 78
AslloisweH
MIeM Jusmiag
0] SWOH
A N N N N - N N N A| Butoho ‘Buisjiem Joseyoq3l| 08z | Pi 145 ¢l0c¢ |1866L | dd ¢l0¢/eo/8lL lojhe ] r €8
Bop ‘Bunilep| /IO spueimod| ; oGz
MIem Jusmieqg
0} 8s0|) abpo]
A N N N N N N N N A dlemuemiag| 0S¢ | O€ 0¢€ ¢10¢ (2861 dd Z10¢/eco/6l lojkel| 33| es
0} 8s0|) 9bpo
- M mj m m My o0 @ Py 5 =z <0 @) 5
e Mm sl 3 .mmm_w soougy | = o = T woig/ol [ & © man ) m % m % o W 2 Qe » ™
sZ8IE 22| 2 B alg Slsoreu]| & |0 8|0 @ S sol2cléz2lalalalaile]lz2]|Sas 3 N =z
2=|28|122| 8 |22]|2% s [°elsel 3 S ol En-1 IS I I N RN - R 3 =ol §
o = 28 = 3 = o o ) D - —©
Q nWM. 2| 3 o= m.% u1sqo @ ol|® & @ uoneunsag | @ @ |3 3 .w | o @ @ @ . @ 83 o o
-~ o — o — = (2] »n m » - O (0]

19ayspealds aouspIAe - g JuaWwnooQ




Page 23

N N N N N - N N N A Builem pue| e uemiag| QGl 6 6 ¢l0c |€00C | dd ¢10¢/co/LL Wb 1166
Buiuuni ‘Buiphp 01 PEOY| / 00
AspieisweH
ubiH
- N N N N - N N N A uonealdal wed| 0Gl 6 6 Z¢l0c¢ [€00C | dd Z10¢/co/8L WBUM d
/Butiohol stiem wamisal ; oo 86
/Buiiiepmn 0} SWoH
N N N N N - N N N A|Butuuns ‘Buniem| e juemiaal QL 6 6 ¢l0c¢ [€00C | dd Z10¢/co/8L WBUM Ol 46
‘Buloho 0} 8WOH| / oG
A N N N N A N N N A|Bulpho “Buniiem slem| 001 6 6 ¢l0c |€00C | dd 210¢/eo/6l Aupopy Il 96
Juamia( 0}
N AspisysweH
N A N N N A N N A spualy| Mep uemiea| - 1974 134 ¢L0c |6961 | dd ¢10¢/eo/6l SYS9IM 4] 66
JIsIA ‘sBop| 0} sse00y 183
dlem ‘esiouax3| spuepued pue
183 |leH weH
ojul yyedjooy
21|gnd 0} sWoH
N N N N N N N A uonesiosy Alem A4 A4 ¢L0c |6961 | dd ¢10¢/co/oL SHS9IM V| ¥6
Jusmia( pue
spuepjied 0}
N AspisiswenH
- T mj O ml| _, Ml e ol . & & z <0 ol =
% Mm qA_u mAv .mmm_w S90UB)} zZ mu...uu...m 0 wold /o] m.o man %w w._ @ W._ @ o % mm % _
2olzcls sl 2 |23 a]streu] & |2 920 @ S RN P L o~ -+ o =+ @ 2 320 > 2 |z
gsleel22) 5 |aclss o |15, 2 IS e ==l © o w) ol2la| 2% o ) 5 lo
sslz8l52| g |2&]58 gl 22| ¢ <3IszxBslele|e|2]|cS]|5]|88° 3 .
o S ® m. W ==d o uJsqo w @ W uoneunsaqg m % S0 HA\ m @ @ (0] 5] 2 m Q @ D

19ayspealds aouspIAe - g JuaWwnooQ




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 24



e

Document B

Statements taken from
path users

Claimed Footpath between B6310 and High Hamsterley Road,
Hamsterley Mill

Statement by Mr Lawrence Graham of Lintzford Road Hamsterley Mill
NE39 1HG

My name is Lawrence Graham and | have lived at 53 Lintzford Road since
September 1961.

There were fewer houses in the estate at that time. | knew about the link path
to the B6310 Burnopfield Road as it was regularly used by local people and
by Lord Gort, who would use the path on his way from Hamsterley Hall to the
bus stop on the A694.

| first used the path immediately after moving to Lintzford Road in 1961,
initially to get to the grounds of Hamsterley Hall and later to access the
Derwent Walk. From about 1984 my wife and | began to use the path a lot
more often for recreation, as our children had grown up and we had more
leisure time. We used the path to visit people on the Parklands Estate and
also to access the Derwent Walk.

When | first used the path it had a grass surface. | cannot recall exactly when
the flagstones were laid. | am not entirely certain of the date when the steps
were installed, but they were probably put in because Lord Gort used the
path.

Over the years | have seen many people, including walking groups and
cyclists, using the path. | cannot recall the path ever being obstructed, and
have never heard from friends or neighbours of anything about the path being
closed.

There have never been gates, stiles or signs on the path. | never sought
permission from Lord Gort to use the path, and have never been challenged
when walking it. | have always used the path for leisure purposes or for
visiting people.

| state that this correctly describes the information | gave to Kevin Telford from
Durham County Council by telephone on Wednesday 26 September 2012

Signed

Date [ Sursber 3orl

Page 25



Ex

Page 26

Document B

Claimed Footpath between B6310 and High Hamsterley Road,
Hamsterley Mill

Statement by Dr Michael John Harbinson of Lintzford Road Hamsterley
Mill NE39 1HG

My name is Michael John Harbinson and | live at 35 Lintzford Road
Hamsterley Mill.

| moved to Hamsterley Mill in 1965, and lived at 13 High Hamsterley Road
until 1977, when | moved to 35 Lintzford Road. | can recall the footpath to the
B6310 Burnopfield road being there when we first moved to Hamsterley Mill,
as we used it to get to the Burnopfield road to watch the Parklands Estate
being built.

My main use of the path has always been for recreation, and | use it to get to
the Derwent Walk, Hamsterley Hall and Pont Burn Woods, and also to visit
friends in Parklands. | use the path frequently, sometimes several times each
day. The path has always been well used by other people, by both local
residents and by people who do not live on the Hamsterley Mill or Parklands
Estates.

| do not recall the path ever being obstructed or closed. There have never
been gates, stiles or notices on the path. As far as | can remember the steps
were on the path when | first started using it in 1965. The flags were put down
sometime during the 1980s, and may have been paid for by the Residents
Association.

| never sought permission from anyone to use the path, and | have never
been challenged when walking it. | have always used the path for leisure
purposes or for visiting people.

| state that this correctly describes the information | gave to Kevin Telford from
Durham County Council by telephone on Monday 1 October 2012.

Signed

Date

®.1°. |2



Document B

Claimed Footpath between B6310 and High Hamsterley Road,
Hamsterley Mill

Statement by Mrs Carol Hunt of Tollgate Road Hamsterley Mill NE39 1HF

My name is Carol Hunt and | have lived at 25 Tollgate Road Hamsterley Mill
since May 1976.

| first used the path between the B6310 Burnopfield Road and High
Hamsterley Road in the late 1970s. The bus which brought the children from
High Westwood School stopped at the top of the steps. | recall the path
having a natural surface with 2 steps leading to the B6310.

In 1984 we acquired a pet dog, and | began to use the path more for
recreation, primarily to access the Derwent Walk. At this time | bought an
Ordnance Survey map of the area, which clearly shows a route through the
estate where the path is. | have since used the path almost on a daily basis to
exercise our dog. | consider the path to be public as | have always used it
since moving to Hamsterley Mill, and | have seen many other people using it.

| can’t recall exactly when the paving slabs were laid, but it may have been
sometime during the 1990s. In the time | have used the path it has never been
obstructed. There have never been gates, stiles, notices or signs on the path.
| have never been stopped from using the path and have never sought
permission from anyone to use the path. | have never used the path for
business purposes.

| state that this correctly describes the information | gave to Kevin Telford from
Durham County Council by telephone on Thursday 4 October 2012.

Signed

o0 —.

Date | §-vo .

Page 27



Document B

12

Claimed Footpath between B6310 and High Hamsterley Road,
Hamsterley Mill

Statement by Mrs Joyce Hutchinson of Lintzford Road Hamsterley Mill
NE39 1HG

My name is Joyce Hutchinson and | was born in Hamsterley Colliery. | have
lived at 39 Lintzford Road since 4 February 1949, having purchased the land
from Lord Gort two years earlier.

There were very few houses when ours was built and apart from the main
through road no estate roads as such. | can’t remember exactly when the link
path to the B6310 Burnopfield Road was first used, but | recall Lord Gort
using the path to get to and from Medomsley Church and his house. He would
stop to talk to people in the estate on his walks.

| first used the path from the early 1950s when | was a part time teacher at
Lanchester School. | used the path to get to the bus which ran between
Burnopfield and Lanchester. | would sometimes come home this way, but two
or three times a week | would return via Consett. There was no bus stop as
such; we just got on and off the bus at the hole in the hedge where the path
leaves the road.

After 1955 | mainly used the path to go on countryside walks to Hamsterley
Hall and through the grocunds to Dipton. When the railway closed | used the
path to get to the Derwent Walk. My son had a milk round he took over from
his father-in-law, and for an 18 month period between 1976 and 1978 | also
used the path to deliver milk and collect money from the Parklands Estate.
During this time | still used the path for recreation. | last used the path in 2009.

The steps were put in on the path by Lord Gort around 1960. Previous to that
there was just a slope leading to the road. The Hamsterley Mill Residents
Association bought the concrete slabs which were laid on the path by the local
Council, but | can’t remember the exact date they were laid, or when the
handrails were installed next to the steps.

There have never been gates or signs on the path. During the time | used it
the path has never been obstructed and always kept open. | never sought
permission from Lord Gort to use the path, and have never been challenged
when walking it. | have seen many other people using the path over the years.

| state that this correctly describes the information | gave to Audrey Christie
and Kevin Telford from Durham County Council at my home on Monday 24"

September 2012
Signed
Date 'llo"lol?_,_

Page 28



Document B

(42

Claimed Footpath between B6310 and High Hamsterley Road,
Hamsterley Mill

Statement by Mrs Georgina Jack of Parklands Hamsterley Mill NE39 1HH
My name is Georgina Jack and | live at 26 Parklands, Hamsterley Mill.

| first used the path between the B6310 Burnopfield Road and High
Hamsterley Road straight after moving to Parklands in 1972. My husband
used the path to get to the bus stop on the A694 to catch the bus to
Newcastle, and | used it regularly to get to the bus stop and to post letters. On
Sundays | also did a recreational circular walk around the estate using the
path.

The path as it was when | first started using it is almost exactly the same as it
is now. It has always followed the same route and | recall the steps and two
handrails being on the path from the time | first started using it. | can’t recall
exactly when the paving slabs were laid, but they may have been paid for by
the Residents Association. | do remember thinking after the flagstones had
been laid that the path was in better condition than the Parklands path on the
opposite side of the B6310, which had a cinder surface.

| have seen many other people using the path. Since | started using it | cannot
recall the path ever being obstructed or overgrown. The path has always been
well used as it is the only way to get to the main road through the estate.
There have never been gates, stiles or signs on the path. | never sought
permission from anyone to use the path, and have never been challenged
when walking it. | have never used the path for business purposes.

| state that this correctly describes the information | gave to Kevin Telford from
Durham County Council by telephone on Monday 1 October 2012.

Signed

Date ltijo iz

Page 29



(A

Page 30

Document B

Claimed Footpath between B6310 and High Hamsterley Road,
Hamsterley Mill

Statement by Mr James Longrigg of High Hamsterley Road Hamsterley
Mill NE39 1HD

My name is James Longrigg and | have lived at 4 High Hamsterley Road
since September 1966.

| recall the link path to the B6310 Burnopfieid Road from the time | moved to
Hamsterley Mill. | clearly remember using the path with my wife to get to the
field where Parklands was built. | have always considered the path to be for
public use, and believe that Lord Gort had prescribed that paths should be
provided in the estate. My use of the path is entirely recreational. | use it
frequently to get to and from the Derwent Walk, and occasionally to visit
friends in Parklands.

| do not know the date when the steps and handrails were put in, but there
was open access when we first started using the path in 1966. The flagstones
were laid relatively recently. | don’t recall exactly when they were laid. In the
time | have used the path it has never been blocked and | have always been
able to walk it free of hindrance, even before Parklands was built.

| have never seen any notices or signs and there have never been any gates
or stiles on the path. | never sought permission to use the path, and have
always assumed it was a common right of way. Over the years | have seen

many people using the path, both local residents from the estate and people
from elsewhere.

| state that this correctly describes the information | gave to Kevin Telford from
Durham County Council by telephone on Tuesday 2 October 2012

Signed

Date '



S

Document B

Statement by Mrs Audrey Oxley McCormack of Parklands, Hamsterley
Mill, NE39 1HH
Footpath between B6310 and High Hamsterley Road, Hamsterley Mill

| have lived at my current address since March 1976. Almost immediately
after moving in | began to use the path. | have always used it to visit people
on the bottom estate and to post letters using the box on the main road
(A694). Five years into living here | joined Hamsterley Mill wives where we
would meet at someone’s house on an evening, often on the bottom estate so
| would walk that way. During my time living here | have used the path about
once a week.

For a particular period from 1976 to 1984 | used to come home from work by
bus 1 day a week and got off on the A694 and walked through to Parklands
via the path. | would usually get a lift going to Newcastle.

Since | retired, about 16 years ago, | have also come back from Newcastle on
the bus and walked back home via the path. In that time | have also walked
more for leisure and have also gone that way to go to Lintzford, walking along
the footpath alongside the A694.

My recollection is that the steps and handrail on the path are exactly as they
were when | arrived at Hamsterley Mill in 1976. The paving slabs came later
but | cannot be sure when. | can recall that prior to them the path could be
muddy. There has always been grass on either side of the path.

| cannot remember obstacles across the path until in 2012. | have never
asked anyone permission to use the path, and have never been challenged or
used the path to visit nos 17 or 20 High Hamsterley Road.

When my children were at school, in Newcastle, they used to often come back
by bus and walk back home from the bus stop via the footpath. They normally
had a lift to school. My son was at school from September 1976 to Summer
1982 and my daughter from September 1979 to Summer 1986. For a period
of 3 years my daughter came back by bus every day.

We have always taken the path to be a public right of way. | have never been
stopped by anyone saying it's not a public path. | have heard that the steps
were put in by Lord Gort for him and the people of the estate to use.

| state that this correctly describes the information | gave to Audrey Christie
from Durham County Council by telephone on Monday 17 September 2012

Signed

Date | 3K O dsbgr. o012

Page 31



G5

Page 32

Document B

Statement by Mrs Rosemary Morris of Long Close Road, Hamsterley
Mill, NE39 1HQ
Footpath between B6310 and High Hamsterley Road, Hamsterley Mill

| have lived at my current address since August 1972 until present with a
break of about 10 months in 1983/4 when | lived in Canada. For all the time |
have lived here | have used the footpath and since 1975 have always had a
dog to walk. Until 2007 | walked the path about 4 or 5 times a week and since
then once a day, either to walk around Parklands, into the grounds of
Hamsterley Hall and certainly since the 1980’s to gain access to the Derwent
Walk (to the east of Hamsterley Mill).

In my memory there have never been any stiles or gates on the path, nor
signs or obstructions until 2012. | am aware that others may remember an
obstruction for a short time around 1990 but | never saw anything. | have
never asked permission to use the path nor have | ever been challenged by
anyone. | have not used the path to visit anyone at nos 17 or 20 High
Hamsterley Road. | recall during the 1980s children have sledged there and
been asked not to.

| understand that the steps were put in by Lord Gort's then Estate Manager
Billy Chapman. Possibly the handrail was put in later by the Residents'’
Association. | think there was an intention for it to be put in as a road exit on
early estate plans but this idea was abandoned. | think that the Residents’
Association in conjunction with the Council laid the paving slabs using work
experience lads in the mid to late 1980’s because it was becoming muddy and
this was paid for out of the Residents’ Association’s funds.

More recently the residents were concerned that some slabs were shifting and
lifting up, probably due to nearby tree roots.

The path has been used for a considerable period of time and by everyone on
the Estate. | think it was Lord Gort's intention for the path to be used by
everyone to gain access to his grounds in nearby Hamsterley Hall which he
encouraged and he often used it prior to his death in 1975 to visit people in
houses here and gain access to the A694.

| state that this correctly describes the information | gave to Audrey Christie
from Durham County Council by telephone on Friday 21st September 2012

Signed

oae 25 &@waml



Lo

Document B

Statement by Dr Roy Nichols of Parklands, Hamsterley Mill, NE39 1HH
Footpath between B6310 and High Hamsterley Road, Hamsterley Mill

| have lived at my current address since Christmas 1969. | started using the
footpath in 1970 and have continued to do so for a number of reasons. | have
walked it to access the bus stop on the AB94 (travelling in Newcastle
direction), visit people on the bottom estate, use the postbox and when taking
a walk down to the Lintzford nursery (now garden centre). Up until 2008 |
used the path on average 200 times a year.

Since 2008, due to changes in bus services, | have used the footpath less
regularly, but still about 150 times a year.

| have never encountered any obstructions on the path, until 2012, nor seen
any signs or notices on or near it. | have never asked anyone permission to
use the footpath nor been challenged by anyone.

| can always remember the steps and handrail where the path comes down
from the B6310. The paving slabs weren’t there when | first knew the path
and | think they were put down more than 10 years ago. Previously it had
just been grass. The hedge alongside 20 High Hamsterley Rd has always
been in the same place but | remember that the garden fence for no 17 was
erected about 15 years ago.

My children used to walk the path every day during term time to access the
bus stop on the A694 to go to and from school (in Newcastle) between 1976
and 1985. They were friendly with the children at no 20 High Hamsterley
Road between about 1972 and 77 so would use the path to go there, as did I.

My wife has also used the path, and probably more so than | as she was at
home when the children were smaller and more regularly uses the facilities in
Rowlands Gill by bus.

| can remember when we first moved here that Lord Gort would himself walk
the path to visit the estate on a Sunday. | understand that even before we
even came here that the residents of the bottom estate walked that way for
taking their dogs out. Until recently we had never heard of any objections or
problems with using the path.

| state that this correctly describes the information | gave to Audrey Christie
from Durham County Council by telephone on Thursday 27 September 2012

Signed

rd /;g/ Lo/ 2012 .

Page 33



3

Document B

Statement by Mrs Irene Oakley of High Hamsterley Rd, Hamsterley Mill,
NE39 1HD
Footpath between B6310 and High Hamsterley Road, Hamsterley Mill

| have lived at my current address since September 1971. | can remember at
this time my children were primary school age and we used to regularly go for
walks with them that way. We had a particular favourite walk via the footpath,
along to the Derwent Walk, passing the old Lintzford ink works and back up
the main road home. We'd also sometimes walk onto Lord Gort's land
(Hamsterley Hall) via the footpath as well as going blackberrying during
September and October. | had friends in Parklands that | would walk to via
the footpath. | would say that in that time, up until the mid 1980's when my
children left home, | used the path a couple of times a month.

After the mid 1980's | still used the path, but less frequently, about once every
2 months. | would often go walking by myself at weekends, leaving the estate
that way.

| last walked the path about 2 years ago.

| can remember that when my children were primary school age they
tobogganed down the footpath and the owner of 20 High Hamsterley Road

. ad complained that it was making the footpath too mtsdy. sliepe £y

| have never seen any obstructions across the path nor any signs or notices. |
never asked anyone for permission to use it.

| can always remember there being steps and a handrail but the paving slabs
came later. | don’t know when they were put down.

Everyone’s always regarded the path to be a public right of way and it's been

used by residents and people from outside the village.

| state that this correctly describes the information | gave to Audrey Christie
from Durham County Council at my home on Thursday 27 September 2012

Signed

Date 2| @l 2oz,

Page 34



<49

Document B

Statement by Mr David Turner, Parklands, Hamsterley Mill, NE39 1HH
Footpath between B6310 and High Hamsterley Road, Hamsterley Mill

I have lived at my current address in Parklands since 1 April 1978 and used
the path from this time onwards.

| have walked the path in order to gain access to the bus stops on the A694
when going to Newcastle, Consett and Shotley Bridge. I've also used it to
visit friends on the Hamsterley Mill Estate, to go to the post box on the A694
and when going on leisure walks. One of our favourite walks is to go down
the Derwent Walk, along to Lintzford, back along the A694, through the
Hamsterley Estate and via the footpath back up to Parklands. | have on
average used the path about 100 times a year and about 80% of my use has
been in getting to the bus stop and walks.

The steps and hand rail have been in place for as long as | can remember.

The paving slabs are more recent and | remember prior to this that the path
was an earth surface that could get quite rough. | don’t know exactly when
the slabs were laid but it could be about 30 years ago.

| cannot recall there ever being any obstructions to the path until 2012.
Similarly | have never seen any signs or notices on the path.

When you descend the steps you are surrounded by scrubby bushes but the
path then crosses a grassed area which | cannot remember ever being
overgrown. | have always assumed land on either side of the path to be no
man'’s land.

We have never asked anyone permission to use the footpath and no one to
my knowledge has ever been stopped from using it.

The path is important as we don't have any pavements along the B6310 and
we don’t want to trample along wet road verges. The road is dangerous and
my wife broke her ankle slipping on the verge when the path was shut in
2012

My wife has used the path as much as me from 1978 to 2012 as access to
the bus stops and during walks

Everyone has just used the path as if it was a public right of way. | wasn't
aware that the land was private until it was closed off in 2012.

| state that this correctly describes the information | gave to Audrey Christie
from Durham County Council at my home on Wednesday 3 October 2012

Signed David R Turner

Date 3rd October 2012

Page 35



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 36



Document C
Submissions by owner

HISTORY

The large strip of land outside my property was purchased for a sum
of money directly from Lord Gorts Estate in the Summer of 1992

Lord Gorts Estate did not record a physical foot path in any of the
original plans or updated deeds in 1992

The physical appearance of the land in 1592

The large strip of my land was completely wild and overgrown with
bushes

There was no concrete path at that time

(SEE PLAN A 1992)

There were no handrails on my garden steps at that time

There was a set of garden steps in the top corner however these
were virtually obscured by overgrown bushes

The general appearance of the strip of land was unkempt and very
wild so much so the side path to my house and side gate were also
overgrown

(All the other land on the estate was landscaped and fully grassed
and belonged to Lord Gorts Estate which has strict protocol attached
to it)

In 1993 we cleared all of the overgrown large strip of land of its
weeds and bushes (SEE PLAN B 1993)

The land was landscaped and turfed

Fence-posts were concrete founded the entire length of the
boundary

A fence between the boundary was errected

Page 37



Document C

We were visited an ENFORCEMENT QFFICER from County who told
us that a member of the Residents Association had complained

We were advised we could not erect a fence on a public footpath
.This indicated to us that part of the large strip of land we had just
cleared was not on our land and was beyond our boundary line

(The officer did not see the land before we cleared it of the bushes
and undergrowth)

We were asked to place the fence 3.5 meters back from the
boundary line which was further back than the original overgrown
bushes and hedges which created a natural boundary

We were told by county that this visit was enforceable.

We took the advice as sound removed the fence and paid fo a new
fence

Between 1998-2000
The Residents association )
arranged the placement of

A physical 1.2 metre wide path in the form of concrete slabs path

B Widening/Opening of the steps and installed handrails on what |
had been told was not on my land

This path was installed it is alleged by the Residents Association
under the guidance of the Local Authority

Page 38



Document C

(A, 192 JUST vecveo n

L ¥ DTS AT irTP&{j{fﬁii{ Y
B30 STEPS WG
_) : J_‘,-,-/ L

M
)
- u"
!
il oy
'_:b*“ﬁ ADSNOOQ,
QM SAIA

Page 39



Document C

. A 92 -
L Fere ER ;‘:,@_-\'.) = BT =EBEg TEYS

B8 Tave Moot
:DL)E:TC- Ce LYy
CFEICe .

B3 e

IRIBATT

TNCY )

~ NN

\TISES

Var=.8 s o ==Y

: }'\r_ X3 X.\

Page 40



Document C

@ (178
‘& REsIHETS

S ASSCCmNens [y ALescenly
ot Conndal. ALy AR N ﬁ"-‘\f;

A

.
Y

fr }
Y e o s

\Y 2T

AT SRR

- '-P:-?}C;_ ...)L

vy
i

Page 41



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



Document C

From: Nicola Garrington

Sent: 03 January 2013 17:22

To: Audrey Christie; Nicola Garrington
Subject: Further evidence Nicola Garrington
Attachments: TToTTr T T T T e o

Flaws in recommendation by Durham County Council

Earlier period 1972-1992

Outside of all *freehold plots” were grass verges and a private road to the public highway

All the grass verges in the earlier period including the roads belonged in fee simple to Lord Gorts
Estate (The Vendor)

Lord Gorts Estate was the absolute owner of all of the “protected lands”
All of the protected lands had “restrictive covenants” upon them
These protected lands for the time being were by way of lease by the vendor (Lord Gorts Estate)

Therefore the purchasers ( are an exclusive group of residents )
had:

freehold title inside their plots -

leashold title outside their plots - purchasers were tenants

*SEE EVIDENCE RESTRICTIVE COVENANT*

The exclusive groups of people the purchasers were restricted in their activities regarding the
grass verges

“.The purchasers would not use the grass verge in front of the site for any other purpose than as a
grass verge and will not do or permit or suffer anything to be done to prevent or interfere with the
maintenance as such by them”

*SEE EVIDENCE LEASHOLD PRIVATE RIGHT OF WAY T*
Exclusive groups of people the purchasers (The residents)
had a “right of way fto the highway”

item A PRIVATE ROAD
From 1949- 1987 there was only one main entrance to the Main Estate and the only
“Surfaced route” for pedestrian and vehicular access to the entrance of the Estate

This entrance had a notice which was on the left Hand Side was located on the entrance to High
Hamsterley Road and it clearly stated PRIVATE ROAD

Page 43



Document C

This notification was installed by Lord Gorts Estate Management and clearly demonstrated the
following

“The landowner must not be able to demonstrate he had no intention to dedicate
the way”

Miss Garrington has appointed a Barrister Christopher Vane of Trinity Chambers his opinion
Notes the following ;

That it could be argued that such a notice should be read as applying to the route in question as
well as the estate road .

The fact there was only one main private estate road and the route in question which was grassed
Before 1990 led onto this gives significant weight to this argument

(An example would be that if you took a short cut through a parcel of land but left by the main
entrance to get to the public highway you would know you had committed a trespass once you
read the “ Private Road “sign )

tem B CUL -DE -SAC
The alleged route prior 1987 therefore did not run from public highway to public highway

As long as the estate road remained Private it is argued that the alleged route was really a private
cul- de —sac with no public rights of way over it

Item C Route not shown or included in conveyance

1987 Estate roads adopted
The route in question was not included in that conveyance however the official alternative route
was

1988 HMRA AGM MEETING

A request to Derwentside Council by the residents Association for an all -weather path to be laid
This was turned down by the local authority

( The existing highways have no historical records on file )

1994 HMRA AGM MEETING

A request to Derwenside Council by the residents Association for installation of handrails to be
laid installed on the alleged route in question

This was turned down on the grounds it was not adopted by the county council
(The existing highways have no historical records on file )

Item D The public at large must have used the way

Page 44



a)

b)

Document C

Use must be by the public at large, not just certain tenants or employees of an
estate.

Miss Garrington has appointed a Barrister Christopher Vane of Trinity Chambers his opinion

The Residents Association and its members are of course are neither “the public’ nor each of the
residents on Hamsterley Mill Estate no more are local authorities “the public”

12 users recorded 1972-1992 are part of an exclusive group of people on the estate who do not
represent the public at large

. Contemporary period 1992 -2012

It is stated that in the said draft report on item 6.1

“Although the owner asserts that the obstruction existed for 3-4 days it is surprising that having
regard to the regularity of the usage put forward
no one has any recollection of the route being obstructed”

Evidence to the contrary

Statement 63 of long close road Hamsterley Mill

‘| am aware that others may remember an obstruction for a short time around1990 but | never
saw anything”

Response; this indicated that others who ever they are did withess an obstruction
The statement is made by someone who

Is reluctant to divulge the names of such individuals as the witnessing of an obstruction would not
be beneficial to this individual who is complainant

The fact is the statement is made by an individual who has been notified
of an obstruction in the 1990s

c) The term “others” is plural not singular indicating that more than one individual

notified this individual of the obstruction

Non complainants
The only statements have been taken from complainants only

Various non- complainants have witnessed the fence being moved but have not been approached
by the rights of way team

or notified by public notice

Page 45



Document C

The only contact has been via the HMRA which do not represent all the residents

Local authority record keeping
No records have been retained by the Council of

All Correspondence with HRMA at that time

Detailed Schedule of works for adoption of Roads and sewers

Removal of old signs and replacement of Estate and street signs
Notification of enforcement officer regarding the obstruction of the route

The fact that they are no records does not indicate an event did not occur

Substantial evidence
It is stated that in the said draft report on item 7.2

“‘Recommendations and reasons that contemporaneous written minutes of meetings should be
given greater weight than the recollections of the owner”

Evidence to the contrary
The previous owner (1976-1992) has provided a written signed letter stating that during her
ownership -

*SEE EVIDENCE LETTER FROM PREVIOUS OWNER *(I have remooved the address )

“There was no concrete path up to the set of steps”

The previous owner also states

‘I remember this because a horse rider used to go up to the steps to the top road and in wet
weather there were deep hooves in the grass from the horses hooves”

“The residents association were never involved”

Additional factors

The existing owner has never contacted the previous owner before therefore there is no reason
for the previous owner to distort the facts

There is no benefit to the previous owner to this case

The HMRA actually complained to the council regards horses on the estate and steps were
taken To prohibit their route through the estate

It is stated that in the said draft report onitem 7.3

‘—‘There is no evidence of lack of intention to dedicate the part of the owner
During either 20 year period”

Page 46



Document C

This statement is incorrect
Earlier period 1972-1992

The landowner Lord Gorts Estate was in-fact the absolute owner at that time
Of the said grassed area.

The estate owner demonstrated he had no intention to dedicate the way by placing a Private
sign atits entrance to High Hamsterley Road

Use must be by the public at large, not just certain tenants or employees of an estate
The residents are not the public at large they were tenants outside of their freehold plots

All evidence of 12 users submitted pre 1992 were an “exclusive group purchasers called
residents” of whom had restrictive covenants within their title deeds and a right of way to the
highway”

The 12 users pre 1992 are not the public at large

-Contemporarv period 1992-2012

burchase of freehold grassed verge 24.03.1992
Aim to fence off new boundary line — no concrete path present
Just grassed area

Between late Summer 1992-1993
Fence off boundary line by D Fogain Builders

Complaint by George Maughan
HRMA stating the route was on Lord Gorts Estate and was “the residents land “

Visit by Derwentside district council Enforcement officer
TOLD TO MOOVE THE FENCE AS IT WAS OBSTRUCTING A PUBLIC FOOTPATH
IT WAS STATED THAT OBSTRUCTING THE RIGHT OF WAY WAS AN OFFENCE

IT WAS STATED THAT THE CONSEQUENCES OF NOT MOOVING THE OBSTRUCTION WAS
AN OFFENCE

I WAS INSTRUCTED BY THE OFFICER THAT THE WAY WAS A PUBLIC FOOTPATH AND |
FOLLOWED THE INSTRUCTION TO TREAT IT AS SUCH

| HAD NO REASON NOT TO FOLLOW AN OFFICER OF THE COUNTY

1998
Instaliation of concrete path by HMRA

—Concrete path a HMRA installed on my land
Concrete path b HMRA installed on highway land on parklands side

Page 47



Document C
Please note the path b on the highway is known to the local authority
A resident has broken a limb in 2012 on this path b and the highway in conjunction with
Councillor Watts Stelling have acknowledged that the path is dangerous

Path B has still not been removed

MAY /JUNE 2011

*SEE EVIDENCE PARKLANDS *

EXCLUSIVE CONSULTATION WITH HIGHWAY TO PLACE A SIGNIFICANT PUBLIC PATH
OPPOSITE MY PROPERTY

Its only route it to serve access over my private land
I WAS NOT CONSULTED UNTIL | FOUND OUT ON 6™ NOVEMBER 2012

The majority of residents have not been included the Council have only consulted with the
residents association HVMIRA and a few individuals

The the route channels people for one purpose only to cross my land to the public highway

;\UGUST/SEPTEMBER 2011

HRMA Visit
Asked who was responsible for the path as it was dangerous and residents were complaining
about its dangerous state

.- ... . When challenged denied any knowledge that the HMIRA were responsible for the
mstallatlon of the path and the negligence surrounding its maintenance

i/isit byt
linstructed [~ ~— " to get the HMRA path removed
This was not instigated by "~ -

Item G 25" October 2011 Coungil
The path is not adopted or a_registered public right of way

ITEM H- I J- K
30™ November 2011 HRMA Letter and visit by
Confirming the path was dangerous and that it belonged to me and was my responsibility

Visit BY ** -

_ when challenged acknowiedge that the HMIRA were responsible for the installation
of the path

34TH January 2012 Abandonment of path by HMRA
6

Page 48



Document C

-Closure of path before the 20 year period was up

éummarv of contemporary period 1992 -2012

There was no lack of intention o dedicate in the intervening contemporary vears

because

| followed the instruction of the county council

Who advised THE ROUTE WAS A PUBLIC FOOTPATH

Who instructed TO REMOVE THE FENCE WHICH OBSTRUCTED A HIGHWAY
This advice was discovered in 2011 to be negligent

~Due to the negligent action of the county council in
tolerating / ignoring HMRA path b on highways land Installed by HMRA
This action gives credibility to the actions of the HMIRA path a and path b

Bias of local authority

The HMRA has a significant advantage with the Local Authority

The HMRA has been given the advantage of information in contrast to myself and other
interested parties who have been excluded

| am the only individual in the example below where this outcome would have a adverse impact
to my freehold property

EXCLUSIVE CONSULTATION AND SUBSEQUENT AGREEMENT WITH HIGHWAY TO PLACE A SIGNIFICANT
PUBLIC PATH ON THE HIGHWAY ON PARKLANDS SIDE

WHICH SEVES ONLY TO DIRECT TRAFFIC TO CROSS MY PRIVATE PROPERTY
THIS EXCLUSIVE CONSULTATION STARTED IN APRIL 2011

MISS GARRINGTON WAS PROHIBITED FROM ANY INFORMATION UNTILL ADMITTED ON 26™ NOVEMBER
2012

It is stated that in the said draft report on item 7.4

“It is difficult at this stage to form a view on whether the path was in fact blocked by the owner in
1992/1993”

The original builder D. Foggin Builders has been contacted and he has verified the
movement of the obstruction/fence to another location following the instructions of the
local authority

*SEE EVIDENCE D FOGGIN *

Hi Nicola

Page 49



Document C

With ref to your inquirey regarding various buiding work carreid out my my company in 1992 /3 i can comferm that
we errected the fence around the boundrey of you property instructed by yourselves and then we had to reposition
the west side away from the path

after your conserdation with the local authority who advised you it was an obstruction

REGARDS

Additional factors
The existing owner has never contacted the Builder since 1992

There is no benefit to the Builder to this case

Statement 63 of long close road Hamsterley Mill
‘I am aware that others may remember an obstruction for a short time around1990 but | never
saw anything”

The complainant utilises the word obstruction which further supports the way had an obstacle in
its path

Statements of non-complainants has not been instigated by the local authority
The local authority have only taken statements from complainants submitted by the HMRA.

The HMRA omitted to disclose to those individuals petitioned that they in-fact had instigated the
event and committed a civil wrong

Page 50



Document C

Letter from previous owner
(prior to 1992) of 17 High
Hamsterley Road

gm fw{ﬂn_m Antl Aty _."-‘L}Eorc;{;.n,l:, ascciailcon .

Joe | as mo Comercts e TPTEL AN - S 4 Aleps,
remiax B Hy Auwcaine o Abras Moloen tacol & g up s Tha
ahips b A bap road and we etk eefles (Roas wewm oleers
hoboo i\ froes 64.*;;\,4 He hasad's Aeyveas.
Cuisicle ©w i-wp_(?— Eloaq o e o Fteo Rmoll rhA A
LRl g huoband Aol plastey . Bet kv and
M, Brpia tror et Aluk Znling -Smd KD G N.cuﬂs@»j VgL
TJla RisokeaG (ascection mes | ntogA  owicbvad .
Unfockinctity Ale phi~gopha | J ke ont o A8 T“fﬂ_
Assfic wﬁ.f'n,m_._e_;;Y ol enlBnelle | Nene b ’&i’i":“ "hmﬂ
up (v e Stepo, {t-m.-. ) e pe¥t, fie nfy g =
b oy Sie gett — all th reok R gjm'ﬂ*‘““'"? & i)
_}.‘M Onnienne Aol Ao cJ{) _:(L_-:r unﬂ-ﬂ'w‘}f"ﬁ: ﬁj fj‘
Conn At diedk e wfwdelad Aoy Yo e I
Dhsscmiinn ) fhudk s, velgi wead et wUgk 508
Gortls adlucitons B Yoy ssankt s medd Chasges i
/Jﬂ-k-t‘—? S conle A Man:e }\Lﬂpﬁﬁf L ‘-9::-:‘3( f::um.,._c{
njeqed Lwvg okt 1T Hiigh H”“’““’“‘f‘""]‘ _ —
s e Bl | You ol Kaue AeHEs angitecis Ohan S

i{’.c;n{ M(-j et .

-":}‘\_.-f_ er [_I-B H‘S

ﬂf Hin. mdt.'.-T A vin Hang o2 0fe o OVER D O <

Page 51

|



Document C

Email from builder who had
moved fence in 1992

Date: Mon, 17 Dec 2012 16:06:09 +0000
Subject: Re: MOVEMENT OF FENCE
From:[_Pspencerhousearoup.co uk
To: nicolag

Hi Nicola

With ref to your inquirey regarding various buiding work carreid out my my company in 1992
/3 i can comferm that we errected the fence around the boundrey of you property instructed
by yourselves and then we had to reposition the west side away from the path

after your conserdation with the local authority who advised you it was an obstruction

REGARDS

Page 52



Document C

Extracts from 1959 Abstract of
Title for 17 High Hamsterley Road

s

,2)

19 2.2

ABSTRACT OF TITLE

relating to freehold dwellinghouse
situate and known as "Hall Garth",
No. 17, High Hemsterley Road,
Hamsterley Mill, Rowlands Gill in the

County of Durham.

Davies, Bell & Co.,

Newcastle upon Tyne.

Page 53



ABSTRACT OF TITIE relating to freehold dwellinghouse

gituate and known se "Hall garth", No. 17, High
Hamsterley Road, Hamsterley Mill, Rowlands Gill in the

County of Durham

1,CONVEYANCE of this date made between THE RIGHT HONOURABIE STANDISH ROBERT GAGE PRENDERGAST VISCOUNT

GORT (thereinafter called "the Vendor") of the one part and CLARENCE ARTHUR WHITING Draughtsman end
£ MABEL WHITING his Wife both of 21 Holystone Crescent in the City and County of Newcastle upon Tyne

(together thereinafter called "the Purchasers") of the other part

3. IT WAS WITNESSED that in pursuance of the said a greements and in coneideration of the sum of

Two hundred and fifty eight pounds fifteen shillings on or before the execution thereof paid to

the Vendor by the purchasers (the receipt etc)the Vendor as beneficial owner thereby conveyed unto

-

the Purchasers

U ALL THAT piece of land situate at or near
Long Close Gate in the Township of Medcmsley
in the County o Durham and forming part of
the Vendors Hamsterley Estate and containing
by admeasurement Two thousand and seventy square
yards or thereabouts and with the dimensions
abuttals and boundaries thereof delineated in
the plan marked 'A' annexed thereto and thereon
coloured round with red TOGETHER with the
gself-contained dwellinghouse known as "Hall
Garth" and outbuildings then erected on part
of the said piece of land by the Purchasers
AND TOGETHER with right of way for the
Purchasers (in common with the Vendor and other
persons for the time being suthorised by him)

- on foot and with or without horses carts and

other carriages including mechanically propellet
Over/uu

vehicles over and along the road or roads
leading from the said piece of lamd fto the
public highwayfrom Newcastle upon Tyne to
Shotley Bridge for access to and egress from
the said piece of land from and to the said

public highway AND TOGETHER with liberty for
Page 54



Document C

Correspondence between landowner and
Hamsterley Mill Residents Association
Nov 2011 to Feb 2012

@ X%

igh Hamsterley Road,
amsterley Mill
November 30" 2011

Nicola Garrington,

[ ] High Hamsterley Road
Hamsterley Mill
Rowlands Gill
NE3S 1HD

Dear Nicola,
We are sending you a copy of this letter we received from Durham Council.

It was in response to some queries from residents about the condition of the flagstone path and
steps at the top of High Hamsterley Road. We consequently contacted the Council who sent us this
letter. They discovered that the path and steps at the left of the centre of the grass verge are
recorded at the Land Registry as belonging to the owner of 17 High Hamsterley Road.

At a recent meeting of our Executive Committee we agreed a copy should be sent to you and hope it
is helpful. We think the Council’s suggestion is a good one and would appreciate your views on this.

If there’s anything we can do to help you further with this we would be happy to do so.

Yours sincerely,
o—
Qo

Peter Bowring

Vice Chair, Hamsterley Mill Residents’ Association,

Page 55



Document C

e 8
g
Kevin Telford
Contact:
Direct Tol- 0191 3834536
Fp‘:‘" Kevin. Telford@durham.gov.uk
emaif:

Your el penRoW/KT
Due ref

Resemary Morris
ecrelary Hamsterley Mill Residents Association
Long Close Road

Hamsterley Mill

Rowlands Gill

Tyne and Wear

NE39 1HQ

25 Oclober 2011

Dear Rosemary
Unregistered footpath at Hamsterley Mill

As promised during our recent telephone conversation, | am writing to clarify our
position régarding the unregistered footpath which passes between nos. 17 and
20 High Hamsterley Road, Hamsterley Mill.

7
The footpath is not adopted nor a registered public right of way, and according
to information provided by the Land Registry, it is on privately owned land,
Accordingly, Durham County Council as Highway Authority is not responsible
for the maintenarice of the path.

Maintenance consequently rests with the owner of the land, whio may be liable
in the event of an accident resulting from the condition of the path. The
maintenance and liability burden would be substantially reduced if the
landowner were to dedicate the footpath as a public right of way and add it to
the Definitive Map, as under existing highways legisiation Durham County
Council would become responsible for the maintenance of the surface of the
path to a standard appropriate for its use.

Continuedy/,...

Regeneration & Economie Development
Curham County Council, County Hall, Burham DH{ 5UQ
Tel (0191) 383 3000 Minicom (0191) 383 3802 Text 07786 026956

[prrr———| P

Page 56



Document C

R g

Mr Bowring oAl January 2012
High Hamsterley Road
amsterly Mill

NE39 1HD

Without predudice

*The Residents Association instigated and organised the laying of the path without carrying
out

Appropriate land and legal searches

Legal written permission of the landowner

Payment of money for the said land

I must ask the Residents Association to remove the pathway
at their cost due to

A health safety risk caused by their actions

The current situation
The actions of the Residents association have just cause for litigation

A) By placing objects on my land without my legal permission
B} By potentially dispossessing me of my land and rights over the land
by the said action of a representative of the Residents association

| do not at this juncture wish to pursue this avenue
The action by the residents association has created the impression that the land is a public
footpath,

I have no intention of dedicating my property as a public right of way

I would ask that you remove your property from my land
With immediate effect

Ms N Garrineton

| T e Hamsterly Road NE39 1HD

Page 57



Document C

© o

Ms. Nicola Garrington,

I= |

High Hamsterley Road

Hamsterley Mill

NE 38 1HD.

Thank you for your letter dated 17 January 2012.

We acknowledge receipt and will be taking advice.

Hamsterley Mill Residents' Association,

31 January 2012

Page 58



——a
3

s

—

N = & ey

o ————
3

e e i e

= aali &

b e el
o'y
3 PRPRRY 7

Document C

© X

Mr Bowring 6" February 2012

DHigh Hamsterley Road

Hamsterly Mill
NE3S 1HD

r Boweri

The letter of the 31% of January is unsigned by an appointed representative of
the residents association
The letter of the 31> of January has no forwarding address

The previous action of your Association has resulted in

*A serious health and safety risk to the general public

*A series of illegal acts on my property in an attempt to dis -inherit me from my property
*The trespass committed has resulted in an adverse burden upon myself through no fault
of my own

As your letter fails to address the complaints raised by my letter of the 17 of January
I will have no other alternative than to take steps to protect

*the general public

*my personal liability
*my legal status as a landowner

Ms N Garrington

digh Hamsterly Road NE39 1HD

Page 59



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 60



Document D
BRIEFING NOTE FOR THE HIGHWAYS COMMITTEE

Public Rights of Way - Modification of the Definitive Map

The following briefing sets out the legal framework and considerations for modifications to
the Definitive Map.

WILDLIFE AND COUNTRYSIDE ACT 1981

The Wildlife & Countryside Act 1981 places a duty upon the County Council as
'Surveying Authority' to keep the Definitive Map under continuous review and make
Modification Orders in consequence of:

Section 53(3)(b) - the expiration, in relation to any way in the area to which the map
relates, of any period such that the enjoyment by the public of the way during that period
raises a presumption that the way has been dedicated as a public path.

Section 53(3)(c) - the discovery by the authority of evidence which (when considered with
all other relevant evidence available to them) shows:

(1) that a right of way which is not shown in the map and statement subsists or is
reasonably alleged to subsist over land in the area to which the map relates, being
a right of way to which this Part applies;

(i) that a highway shown in the map and statement as a highway of a particular
description ought to be shown as a highway of a different description; or

(i) that there is no public right of way over land as shown in the map and statement as
a highway of any description, or other particulars contained in the map and
statement require modification.

Section 53(5) - any person may apply to the Authority for an order which makes such
modifications as appear to the Authority to be requisite in consequence of the occurrence
of one or more events falling within 53(3), (b) or (c).

Modification Orders made under the above provisions are published and notices served
upon owners and occupiers of land affected. Any objections or representations to the
Order are considered by an inspector appointed by the Secretary of State for the
Environment to determine the matter, usually after a public inquiry. Applicants under
Section 53(5) may appeal to the Secretary of State if the Council decide not to make an
Order .

Before deciding to make a modification order the Council has a duty to investigate the
matter. This may involve interviewing witnesses, archive research etc and will seek to
clarify any serious discrepancies in the evidence. The owner should be given the
opportunity to produce evidence and comment upon other evidence.

The Highways Committee, when considering a Modification Order are acting in a quasi-

judicial role and must ensure the principles of natural justice are complied with. The
Committee must only look at relevant evidence and apply the relevant legal test.

Page 61



Document D

The Committee's officers have a duty to inform the Committee of the legal criteria and the
weight to be given to the evidence.

However, the Committee does not need to follow the formal practices of a public inquiry
or a court.

In considering a Modification Order the Committee is not altering public rights. The
Definitive Map records public rights, it does not create or alter them. The question is what
public rights exist, not what rights the Council, landowners or the public would like to
have. Lawful public rights may have languished unused or been obstructed for years,
nonetheless they are rights. Conversely if a right of way is shown on the Map and
Statement, but is proved not to exist then the error must be remedied and the way
deleted. Modification Orders are not concerned with the suitability for use of the rights
alleged. If there is a question of whether a path or way is suitable for its legal status or
that a particular way is desirable for any reason, then other procedures exist to create,
extinguish, divert or regulate use - but such procedures are under different powers and
should be considered separately.

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 SECTION 31
Presumed Dedication

The effect of S31 is, very broadly, that in certain circumstances 20 years public use of a
way can lead to deemed dedication of that way as a highway unless there is evidence of
a contrary intention. To understand the operation of the section it is necessary to
examine its precise wording. This begins as follows:

(1)  Where a way over any land other than a way of such a character that use of it by
the public could not give rise at common law to any presumption of dedication has
been actually enjoyed by the public as of right and without interruption for a full
period of 20 years, the way is to be deemed to have been dedicated as a highway
unless there is sufficient evidence that there was no intention during that period to
dedicate it.

(2) The period of 20 years referred to in subsection (1) above is to be calculated
retrospectively from the date when the right of the public to use the way is brought
into question whether by a notice such as is mentioned in subsection (3) below or
otherwise.

(3)  Where the owner of the land over which any such way as aforesaid passes:

(a) has erected in such manner as to be visible by persons using the way a
notice inconsistent with the dedication of the way as a highway; and

(b) has maintained the notice after the 1st January 1934, or any later date on
which it was erected;

the notice, in the absence of proof of a contrary intention, is sufficient evidence to
negative the intention to dedicate the way as a highway.

(4) In the case of land in the possession of a tenant for a term of years, or from year to

year, any person for the time being entitled in reversion to the land shall,
notwithstanding the existence of the tenancy, have the right to place and maintain

Page 62



Document D

such a notice as is mentioned in subsection (3) above, so, however, that no injury
is done thereby to the business or occupation of the tenant.

(8) Nothing in this section affects any incapacity of a corporation or other body or
person in possession of land for public and statutory purposes to dedicate a way
over land as a highway if the existence of a highway would be incompatible with
those purposes.

(9) Nothing in this section operates to prevent the dedication of a way as a highway
being presumed on proof of user for any less than 20 years, or being presumed or
proved in any circumstances in which it might have been presumed or proved
immediately before the commencement of this Act.

(10)  Nothing in this section or section 32 below affects section 56(1) of the Wildlife and
Countryside Act 1981 (which provides that a definitive map and statement are
conclusive evidence as to the existence of the highways shown on the map and as
to certain particulars contained in the statement).

(11) For the purpose of this section 'land' includes land covered with water.

HIGHWAYS ACT 1980 SECTION 32
Evidence of dedication of way as highway

A court or other tribunal, before determining whether a way has or has not been
dedicated as a highway, or the date on which such dedication, if any, took place, shall
take into consideration any map, plan or history of the locality or other relevant document
which is tendered in evidence, and shall give such weight thereto as the court or tribunal
considers justified by the circumstances, including the antiquity of the tendered
document, the status of the person by whom and the purpose for which it was made or
compiled, and the custody in which it has been kept and from which it is produced.

MORE ON SECTION 31

To establish the presumed dedication of a right of way under S31, it is necessary to show
that the following all apply:

(a) The nature of the way was not such that dedication could not be presumed at
common law.

(b)  The public at large must have used the way.

(c) The use must have been over a period of at least 20 years without effective
interruption.

(d)  The use must be 'as of right.’

(e)  That 20-year period must have ended with an act that brought into question the
public's right to use the way.

(f) The landowner must be able to demonstrate he had no intention to dedicate the
way.

Page 63



Document D

'A way over land’

The section applies to any way, ie a footpath, a bridleway or a carriageway. 'Land'is
defined as including land covered by water. Thus the section can apply to the acquisition
of a right of way through a ford or along a causeway covered in water at some stage of
the tide.

"Other than a way of such a character that its use could not give rise at common
law to any presumption of dedication"

An example would be a way the use of which was a criminal offence, eg to walk along a
motorway except for the purpose of obtaining assistance.

Similarly, in the case of land held for some statutory purpose and dedication would be
inconsistent with that purpose. This can also apply to corporations or other bodies or
persons.

Limitations or conditions

The public's right to use a way may be subject to limitations or conditions. For example,
the landowner may have a right to erect and maintain a stile or gate to prevent movement
of stock. If the public freely uses a way subject to such a limitation during the qualifying
period, the right of way is held to have been dedicated subject to the limitation. But once
the way has been dedicated, no further limitation can be imposed other than by statutory
means, such as the authorisation of a stile under Section 147 of the Highways Act.

"Actually enjoyed"

There must have been sufficient use of the way for the required period. This will be a
matter of fact to be determined in each case. The motive in using the way is irrelevant. It
will accordingly be sufficient if the sole purpose of the use was recreation.

"By the public"

Use must be by the public at large. It is not sufficient if the use has been merely by a
class of the public, such as the employees of a particular employer, customers of a
particular business or tenants of a particular landlord.

"As of right"

This means that the use must have been as if a right of way existed. There will be no
deemed dedication if the landowner can show that the use was by his permission, or that
the use had entailed force. Use must also be 'open’, ie it must have been such that the
landowner could have challenged it if he wished.

Inherent within the requirement of use as of right is the notion that there must have been
acquiescence by the landowner. ( Acquiescence should not be interpreted as permission
but clearly there can have been no acquiescence if the user was by force or if it was
undetectable). The onus is not on the user to show that the landowner acquiesced; it is
on the landowner to show that he did not.

"Without interruption"

Page 64



Document D

"Interruption" means "actual and physical stopping of the enjoyment" of the public's use of
the way by the landowner or someone acting lawfully on his behalf, eg an employee
acting in the course of his employment. The words do not refer to interruption of use;
there is no requirement that the use must have been constant, although it must have
been sufficient to satisfy the requirement that the way was "actually enjoyed".

The interruption must be with intent to prevent public use of the way. It will not be
sufficient if the interruption is shown to have been for some other purpose, eg to prevent
cattle straying.

"Deemed to have been dedicated as a highway unless there is sufficient evidence
that there was no intention during that period to dedicate it"

The opening words of Section 31 create a presumption that a way has become a
highway, the class of highway (footpath, bridleway or carriageway) depending on the use
made of the way. However the above words emphasise that they create no more than a
presumption which is rebuttable by evidence of a contrary intention.

The landowner must show sufficient evidence that there has been no intention to
dedicate. This is often demonstrated by overt acts directed at users. However such acts
are not strictly necessary if there is other sufficient contemporaneous evidence of a lack
of intention.

A common method of showing a contrary intention is by a notice with such words as
"Private road (or Private path), no public right of way" sometimes followed by a
reference to the legislation current when the notice was erected. Section 31(3) confirms
that such a notice, erected so as to be visible to users of the way, will be sufficient
evidence of an intention that the way is not intended to be dedicated.

"The period of 20 years ... is to be calculated retrospectively from the date when
the right of the public to use the way is brought into question"

It might be thought that the 20-year period would start when use began, but this is not
how the Act operates. The period is 20 years calculated backwards from the date when
the right of the public to use the way is "brought into question" by the landowner (or his
agent) doing some act that challenges the public's right to use the way. So the 20-year
period of use has no fixed starting point, only a fixed finishing point.

Bringing the right to use the way into question

Acts that would bring the public's right to use the way into question include the following:
(@) Locking a gate, so as to prevent public use.

(b) Putting up a notice denying the existence of a right of way.

(c) Physically preventing a walker from proceeding along a path.

(d) Bringing an action for trespass (for damages or for an injunction to prohibit future
use).

Page 65



Document D

(e)  Seeking a declaration from the court that the way is not public.

() Opposing an application for a definitive map modification order that adds the way
to the definitive map or lodging an objection to such an order.

In Owen v Buckinghamshire CC (1957) it was held that the ploughing-up of a path was
not sufficient to bring the right of the public to use the path into question.

The effect of a notice denying right of way status should be noted. If after, say 10 years'
use of a path a landowner puts up such a notice, this rebuts any presumption of
dedication and even if the public uses the path for a further 10 years, no right of way will
arise by virtue of the Act.

It should also be appreciated that in some instances an act which brings the right of the
public to use a way into question could also be considered an act which demonstrates a
lack of intention to dedicate.

Presumed Dedication at Common Law

The provisions of Section 31 of the Highways Act 1980 do not supersede the principles
of implied dedication at common law. Indeed Section 31 (9) expressly preserves these
principles.

At common law a landowner must have an intention to dedicate a right of way over his
land. Public user may be evidence from which that intention may be inferred. However
mere tolerance will not be sufficient.

It is for the claimant to prove that it can be inferred from the landowner's conduct that he
actually dedicated the route as a public right of way.

The length of time necessary to demonstrate sufficient use will depend on the
circumstances. Generally the more intensive and open the use of the route by the public,
the shorter the period that will be necessary to raise an inference. In one case, 18 months
was held to be sufficient.

Any such dedication will be ineffective if that person does not have the capacity to
dedicate. A landowner may be able to show title would preclude dedication e.g. lessees,
the Church, Charities prior to 1993. Certain public bodies operating within specific
statutory provisions do not have capacity and implied dedication will not arise if the
existence of a pubic right of way would be incompatible with the purposes of a
corporation or other body or person in possession of land for public or statutory purposes.

Page 66



F/LL: C—»Ofay 47”{\4,4(/4 /"‘/”F"m

1l Residents Association

Annual General Meeting Document E
rch 1988 at Ebchester Community Centre

Minutes
The number of Members present was fiftytwo.

L Apologies for absence.

Apologies were received from Mr& Mrs Coockson, Mr & NMrs Napier, ¥r Moore and
Mr Haddy.

2) Approval of minutes of AGM 1987.

The minutes were accepted unanimously.

3 Matters arising.

a)l Ownership of the grass verges.

On the 10 December 1984 we wrote to the solicitors of the Executors of
Lord Gort proposing that the ownership of the grass verges should be
transferred to the respective residents,as previously discussed with him
at a meeting of the Executive Committee on the 14 November 1984.In order
to avold legal costs the proposal was based on transfer by default.That
is the ownership passes to each individual resident automatically after
twelve years. At the meeting the solicitor raised no objection to this
arrangement as the Executors were no longer interested in owning the
grass verges and the Durham County Council had no wish to acquire them as
part of the road adoption.

In spite of several reminders we have had no response from the solicitor
and therefore your committee has decided on the following actions:

1)To take the lack of response to our letter to imply that the&
solicitor and therefore the Executors have no objection to transfer of
the ownership of the grass verges by default.

2)To assume that the twelve year period commmenced on the date of
the original letter,that is the 10 December 1984

Important Note. Members are advised to make a note of this decision for
future reference.It is suggested that this page should be attached to
your deeds,

b) Sign posting of Hamsterley Mill.

Derwentside District Council has agreed to our request to provide a sign
post or sign posts to indicate the location of Hamsterley Mill and the
County Council has been asked to make the necessary arrangements to erect
"village" signs.

c) Public Telephone hazard.

The request for the removal of the telephone box at the entrance of the
Estate to avoid the potential hazard caused by parked cars has been
turned down by the Council and British Telecom.

The reason given is that before deciding to replace the old type box the
requirement was reviewed and it was decided that a telephone was still
required and that the existing position was the most suitable.After

Page 67



-2 -

considering our request they can see no reason for changing their
decision.

Footpath from High Hamsterley Road to the B6310

Qur request to Derwentside District Council for an all weather path to be
provide at the end of High Hamsterley Road has been turmned down. The
reason given is that this work would conflict with the Council's present
policy which is to use all the available resources on the repair of
existing paths and roads

4) Election of Officers and Committee Members.

Nominations from the committee for officers were:

Chairman and Hon Secretary - George Maughan, Vice-Chairman - George
Turner, Hon. Treasurer - Brian Murray. They were elected unanimously
after a proposal by Mr J Cockwill seconded by Mr S Vebster,

The Chairman stated that the Committee had expressed their satisfaction
with the way in which the combining of Chairman and Hon. Secretary had
worked in the past two years and had agreed that the arrangement should
now put on a formal basis.

¥ominations from the committee for committee members were:

Gordon Berry,Jimmie Cockwill,Ronnie Jack,Kieran Moore,and Steven Vebster,
They were elected unanimously after a proposal by Mr G Fearnihough
seconded by Mr D Haselhurst,

5) Hon. Treasurers Report.

Gordon Berry the Hon Treasurer presented his report,a copy of which is
attached to these minutes, It was acepted unanimously after a proposal by
Mr B Murray seconded by Mr R Silk.

The Chairman expressed his thanks to the retiring Treasurer for the
excellent support he has given to the Association in the last four years.

6> Chairmans Report.

a) Adoption of Roads and Drains.

From a telephone conversation with the Northumbrian Water Authority 1
understand that as far as they are concerned the drains were adopted on
the 11 December 1887 and that in due course responsibility for
maintainance would be taken over by the Derwentside District Council who
would also issue a formal notification of adoption.This also applies to
the drains from Parklands which connect with those on the main part of
the estate.

In response to my enquiry the Derwentside District Council stated that in
case of complaints,blockages etc you should contact the Chief Technical
Officer's Department at Stanley and ask for Mr F Vickers Tel No Stanley
234911,

In a later discussion with the Council it became clear that notification
of formal adoption is dependent on the completion of a small amount of
work still outstanding on the drains on the main part of the estate.

b ¥ill Farm Road.

I am very pleased to report that the Executor's solicitor has finally
abandoned his efforts to obtain a very substantial contribution from the

Page 68



FreE

JMMYW/ Al Acrr A4/ %&‘%

HAMETERLEY MILL RESILENTS ASSOCIATION
Document E

Annual General Meeting

8-0 pm 29 March 1990 at Ebchester Community Centre
MINUTES
The number of Members present was forty.

I A very interesting and informative talk on the VWoodland Trust was
given by Miss Liz Strange who is the Trust's officer covering the North
East.

We are fortunate in that there are nearly three hundred acres of woodland
within easy walking distance of the Estate which have been acquired by
the Trust.The woods are open to the public and will be maintained and
developed by the Trust.It is obviously to members advantage that we have
this guarantee that the area will remain as woodland.

Anyone wishing to become a member of the Trust should contact Liz Strange

at 4,ALma Cottages, Tow Law, Bishop Auckland, CO. Durham. DL13 4EU.
Telephone 0388 730465

2) Apologies for absence.

Apologies for absence received from Mr Haddy.Mr & Mrs Silk and Dr Berry.

3 Approval of minutes of AGM 1088.

Approval of the minutes was unanimous.Froposed by Mr J Cockwill and *
seconded by Mr A Penson.

4) Matters arising.

a)l The path from the east end of High Mill Road to Nill Farm Road
belongs to the Executors of Lord Gort who would like to dispose of
it.Your committee is of the opinion that it should be taken over by the
Council.

b) With regard to the spare land between Long Close Road and Tollgate
Road, Smiths Gore the agents for the Executors have agreed in principle to
the divieion of the land and its disposal to members whose property is
adjacent to it.Details of the area and price of each section has yet to
be decided and is a matter for discussion between the agent and
individual members concerned.

c) The unsatisfactory design of the new fence on the A694 road at
Lintzford has been raised with Gateshead Council several times.There has
been no response.

d> Vith regard to the hazard caused by users of the public telephone
parking their vehicles at the entrance to the estate,the police have
arranged for their patrols to warn people parking there and committee
members will pass on the registration numbers of any cars seen.

Page 69



g’ Transfer of ownership of srass verga:

]

T

Document E

All members with grass verges should have received a letter from
Wilkinson Maughan the Executors solicitors enclosing a document making a
gift to them of their grass verge.I asked our solicitor to check that the
document is satisfactory for its purpose and his advice is that it is in
order and there is no point in going to the expense of a conveyance.
However he stresses the importance of making certain that the area marked
green on the map describes the verge correctly.Errors should be taken
up with VWilkinson Maughan.

e) Improvement of footpaths.

Just after the last AGK a planning application was received for the
building of a house on a vacant plot at 31,Tollgate Road.No objection was
raised to the proposal except to insist that the public right of way
footpath along western edge of the plot should be kept open.The County
Council made enquiries and confirmed that a right of way existed and the
then owners of the plot,the Executors of Lord Gort,were instructed to
take appropriate action.

The result is that an all weather path two metres wide bordered by a
close boarded fence is now in place.

At the last AGM I reported our proposal for an all weather path from High
Hamsterley Road to the B6310 road.Il am pleased to say that this work was
completed a few weeks ago and your committee is now negotiating with the
Training Section of the Council to improve four other paths on the
Estate.

These are, the path from High Mill Road to Mill Farm Road, the path
through the wood from Tollgate Road to the bus stop on the A694 road and
two paths from the B6310 road to Parklands.One at the east and the other
at the west end of Farklands.

It is proposed that the Parklands paths will be in the form of a sweeping
curve down the slope finishing roughly parallel with the road and made up
of dolomite retained by wooden steps fitted with a handrail.The other two
paths will be made up of dolomite.

£) Covenants in house deeds.

Ve have been advised that the support of the Executors of Lord Gort is
required to enforce the covenants and the Associations scolicitor has been
instructed to discuss this with their solicitor.The initial approach will
deal specifically with the two cases where planning permission was given
to build a second dwelling on the same plot.

g) Rubbish in wood at west end of Tollgate Road.

For sometime this wood has been in a disgusting state caused by members
dumping rubbish of every kind.Various actions have been taken to
discourage this practice, none of which have been effective.Drastic
action appears to be the only thing left and arrangements have been made
for the council to put up a warning notice.Anyone seen leaving rubbish
will be reported to the police and will be liable,under the new litter
law which comes into operation shortly,to a fine of upto £1000.

Page 70



L =

4 Hamsterley Mill Residents Association

Anmu=1 SGenera 1l Meetiag:ument E

8-0 pm 19 April 1994 at Ebchester Community Centre
WHOrPRoe P A 7

1) Apologies for absence were received from Mrs J Turner, Mrs Low, Brian
Murray and Gordon Berry.

MINUTES

2) Approval of minutes of AGM 1993.

Approval of the minutes was unanimous.Proposed by Mr Taylor and seconded
by Mr Bell.

3) Matters arising.
a) Request for street light at the entrance to Parklands.

No further progress on extra lighting but pressure for action by the
County Council is being maintained.

b) Durham County Tidy Village Competition.

Ve gained second place in last year's competition,in the section for
Hamlets. Members are asked for their support in ensuring that we win in
this year's competition.Judging will take place in May and July.A
proposal that last year's certificate should be displayed at the
Hamsterley Mill Garage was agreed to by the owner with considerable
enthusiasm and it has been on display, in a suitable frame, since last
September,

4) Roads and Footpaths.
a) Repairs to the footpath on the south side of Lintzford Road.

The reason given for only a part of the path being repaired was that
this was all that the budget for that year would bear.The remainder of
the work has now been completed.

b) Repairs to road name signs.

This work has been completed.

c) Sign to indicate Hamsterley Mill.

A suggestion to the Council that the Association might be prepared to
pay for a sign has had the desired effect. A sign has been made and will
shortly be set up at the west end of the estate near to the RAC
telephone. All paid for by the Council.

Mrs Week's comment that a second sign at the east end of the estate
would be helpful to people coming from Newcastle was noted.

Page 71




6) Chairmans Report. Document E

a) Replacement of handrails on the steps at the end of High Hamsterley
Road.

A request to the Council for the repair of these handrails was turned
down because, it was claimed, the steps had not been adopted by the
Council.Strictly speaking this makes it the responsibility of Lord
Gort's executors but as past experience indicates that to persue this
course of action is likely to take years with the chance of success
about nil, it was decided to have the work carried out at the expense of
the Association.Several quotations were obtained and various designs
were considered.A tubular steel construction was selected as being
acceptable both from the point of view of cost and durability.The work
was completed in December last year.

Page 72

b) Organic Farm.

Originally planning permission for the Organic Farm was turned down by
the Council and subsequently this decision was overturned by an
inspector from the Ministry of the Environment.It was thought it might
be useful to write to the inspector pointing out the lack of use being
made of the site and the damage to the environment for no useful
purpose.The reply received from the Ministry's Enforcement Support Group
stated that "neither the Secretary of State nor the inspector appointed
to determine the appeal has any further jurisdiction....suggest you
again approach the local council".

The Council say that they are watching the situation but there is
nothing they can do if the activities on the site conform with planning
permission.

Vithin the last few days a for sale sign has appeared.It is understood
that this applies to part of the site only.It is therefore any ones
guess as to whether or not the result of the sale will be favourable.

7) BNeighbourhood Watch.

Ray Taylor reported as follows.

a) Twentyfive scheme.

There is now a scheme, designed to assist the police in spotting stolen
cars, by which for fee of £1 stickers can be displayed on the front and
rear of a car which gives the message to the police "this car may be
stopped if anyone less than twentyfive years old is driving it"

b) Tracker schemne.

The Tracker scheme is now available by which an electronic device is-
fitted to a vehicle, in any of several concealed positions. which if it
is stolen can be activated by a police radio to transmit a homing signal
to guide the police to its position.The system is understood to be
giving good results.I expect to have full details in the near future.




	Agenda
	4 Proposed Definitive Map Modification Order to add a footpath to the Definitive Map and Statement - Hamsterley Mill, B6310 to High Hamsterley Road - Joint Report of Corporate Director, Regeneration and Economic Development and Head of Legal and Democratic Services
	1 Doc A Plan Hamsterley Mill
	Document B a
	3 Doc B b Evidence forms what streets
	4 Doc B c Evidence spreadsheet attach LC
	5 Doc B d user statements
	6 Doc C a Nicola Garrington submissions
	7 Doc C b pages further submission email
	8 Doc C c Further submissions
	9 Doc C d Title Deeds
	10 Doc C e NG HMRA communications
	11 Doc D briefing note for Committee
	12 Doc E Minutes of HMRA AGMs 1988 1990 1994.pdf


